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20
21

CHAIR MOLINA:

(Gavel.)

Public Works and Traffic

22

Committee meeting for June 3rd is now in session.

23

Good morning, Members.

24

attendance Vice-Chair Tavares, Members Kane,

25

Pontanilla, and Hokama.

For the record we have in
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Before we proceed with our agenda items for

1

2

today, Members, the Chair will entertain public

3

testimony on any of our five items that we have.

4

Before we do that, the Chair would like to go over a

5

few ground rules as it relates to public testimony.

6

The Chair will give you three minutes with an

7

additional minute to conclude, and please state your

8

name and any organization that you may be

9

representing.
And before we start with our first testifier,

10
11

the Chair would also welcome to our proceedings

12

today the Director of the Public Works and

13

Environmental Management Mr. Gilbert Coloma-Agaran,

14

and from the Development Services Administration we

15

have Mr. Ralph Nagamine, and from the Corporation

16

Counsel's Office we have Cindy Young.
So let us start with public testimony.

17

We

18

have to testify on Item No. 20 -- let's see, Item

19

27, excuse me, I'm having a hard time with numbers

20

this morning, we have Mr. Charles Jencks.

21

Mr. Jencks?
••• BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY ••.

22

23

MR. JENCKS:

Good morning, Mr. Chair, Members of the

24

council.

My name is Charlie Jencks and I'm

25

testifying today on -- on -- on behalf of the Maui
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1

contractors and also as myself as the -- one of the

2

original writers of this legislation that's the

3

subject of Item No. 27 which goes back to the

4

mid-nineties.
Briefly as the -- as to the proposed bill

5
6

from the Department of Planning which modifies

7

section 16.26.106 of the Maui County Code, the Maui

8

contractors have no specific objection to this

9

recommendation with one caveat.

It appears,

10

however, that the legislation that we're discussing

11

today provide the process for a permit to be

12

issued.

13

The architect and owner did not fulfill their

14

responsibilities and the issue was caught during the

15

co process, which is the intent of this legislation

16

that's before you today.

17

with the law in the end, and I guess the question is

18

so where is the flaw in the legislation.

19

didn't fulfill his responsibilities and he had to

20

comply, why are we considering this change to the

21

legislation?

22

government's job less burdensome or to take away a

23

process from your constituents?

24
25

The owner had to comply

If he

Two questions come up, is it to make

As to the proposed bill from Councilmember
Johnson, the Maui contractors do not support in any
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1

fashion the recommended deletion of the plan review

2

waiver permit process from the Building Code,

3

although in all fairness we have not yet heard the

4

rationalization for such a request.

5

is that the plan review permit process has been used

6

over the years by hundreds of people to get a permit

7

in a timely manner.

8
9

What we do know

In the recent past the process has not been
used because of inconsistent interpretation of

10

coastal policy and a lack of support in DSA in terms

11

of staffing to fulfill the obligations in the

12

legislation on behalf of the government.

13

constituents, members of the AlA, the construction

14

community applauded this legislation when passed and

15

the permit process then took 30 to 45 days.

16

Your

Even then they wanted an expedited process

17

because people need it from time to time to fulfill

18

lending obligations, to address the development of a

19

cottage for their kids or their parents.

20

needed then.

21

to a year to get a building permit depending upon

22

the location for the same types of issues that are

23

identified in this legislation.

24
25

It was

Today it takes 90 to a year, 90 days

So one has to ask oneself why delete this
when the situation is worse today.

Giving people
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1

options and allowing them to take responsibility is

2

what this legislation is and was about.

3

away tells those needing permits they cannot be

4

trusted and that government is not willing to do

5

what it has to do to support its commitment to the

6

public.

Taking it

7

Don't delete the bill, address the shortfalls

8

in staffing, support DSA and their needs, and policy

9

interpretation needs to be consistent for everyone

10

whether you're doing a plan review waiver or a

11

regular permit process.

12

Maui county.

13

MR. SALDANA:

14

MR. JENCKS:

Facilitate permitting in

Three minutes.
Don't take away a process that people can use

15

to help themselves out of a tough situation.

16

you.

17

CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you, Mr. Jencks.
Committee Members, any questions for the

18
19

testifier?

20

Seeing none, thank you, Mr. Jencks.

And the Chair failed to recognize his

21

hard-working staff, Analyst Mr. Saldana and

22

Committee Secretary Ms. Sato.
committee Secretary, do we have anyone else

23
24
25

Thank

signed up for the testimony today?
MS. SATO:

No.
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7

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

At this point there is no one else

2

signed up to testify.

3

Chair will close public testimony on our agenda

4

items for today.

5

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

CHAIR MOLINA:

No objections •

Okay.

Thank you very much.

Members, before we begin with the

8

9

Any objections, Members?

••• END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY •••

6
7

If there's no objections, the

agenda items, I have a request to hear Item No. 33

10

first because representatives involved with this

11

item are scheduled to fly off-island.

12

no objections, the Chair would like to adjust the

13

agenda to hear Item PWT-33 first.

14

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

15

ITEM NO. 33:

16
17
18

CHAIR MOLINA:

If there are

Any objections?

No objections.

ACCEPTING DEDICATION OF PEDESTRIAN AND
UTILITY LOT AND ROADWAY LOTS (WAIOLANI ELUA
SUBDIVISION, WAILUKU) (C.C. 04-78)
Okay.
Okay.

Thank you very much.
Members, for Item No. 33, this

19

involves the dedication of pedestrian and utility

20

lot and roadway lots for the Waiolani Elua

21

Subdivision in Wailuku.

22

would like to ask Director Coloma-Agaran to give us

23

a brief overview of this item.

24
25

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

And at this time, the Chair

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

As you noted,

this was -- these are improvements and roadways
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1

associated with a -- with a subdivision that was

2

granted final approval on April 22nd, 2003.
These improvements have been approved by our

3
4

Department, as well as the Department of water

5

Supply.

6

to be satisfactory.

7

reviewed and approved by Department of corporation

8

Counsel.

9

CHAIR MOLINA:

12

Okay.

And the document has also been

Thank you, Mr. Director.

Committee Members, any questions for the

10
11

We reviewed the documents and we found it

Director as it relates to Item 33?
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Is there anything unusual about this

13

particular dedication?

14

you know, following our

15

requirements?

16
17

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

19

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

21
22

Is this standard following,
our sUbdivision

I believe that this subdivision has

some roadways that included some traffic calming --

18

20

Member Tavares?

Uh-huh.
-- that was approved by the

Department.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Okay.

So there's no problem with

this dedication.

23

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

24

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

25

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

No.
Okay.

Thank you.

Committee Members, any other
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1

questions for the Director?

2

recommends the adoption of the proposed resolution

3

and the filing of the communication.

4

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

5

CHAIR MOLINA:

6

second?

So moved.

Okay.

Moved by Member Tavares.

7

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

8

CHAIR MOLINA:

9

10
11

seeing none, the Chair

Is there a

Second.

Seconded by Member Pontanilla.

Discussion.

Member Tavares, you have the floor.

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:
answered.

No discussion.

My question was

Thank you.

12

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you.

13

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Member Hokama?

Chairman, my -- my only question is

14

I notice the documentation has been dated April,

15

2003.

Is there a reason we're here one year later?

16

CHAIR MOLINA:

17

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

18
19

Mr. Director?
And that -- that's on the

attachment, Mr. Director.
MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

The -- the subdivision was approved at

20

that time and I assume that it was approved on bond.

21

The improvements were actually constructed later and

22

then we inspected.

23

improvements in December of 2003, and the Department

24

of Water Supply had approved their improvements on

25

We approved the -- the

in October of 2003.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

2

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you, Member Hokama.

3

questions for the Director?

4

in favor signify by saying "aye."

5

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.

6

CHAIR MOLINA:

VOTE:

AYES:

9

10
11

NOES:
ABSTAIN:
EXC. :
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

12
13

Seeing none, all those

Thank you.

The Chair

will mark it unanimous.

7
8

All those opposed?

Any other

ITEM NO. 27:

14

Councilmembers Hokama, Kane,
Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Tavares and
Chair Molina.
None.
None.
None.
Recommending ADOPTION of proposed
resolution and FILING of communication.

PROPOSED BILL AMENDING SECTION 16.26.106,
MAUl COUNTY CODE, PERTAINING TO THE UNIFORM
BUILDING CODE AND PLAN REVIEW WAIVERS
(C.C. 04-47)

15

16

CHAIR MOLINA:

The next order of business is Item No. 27,

17

which is a proposed bill amending Section 16.26.106

18

of the Maui County Code, which pertains to the

19

Uniform Building Code and plan review waivers.

20

as I mentioned earlier, we have the Director from

21

the Public Works and Environmental Management

22

Department, as well as Mr. Nagamine from DSA.

23

And

And in addition, we have Dawn Duensing, the

24

Cultural Staff Planner and Department of Planning

25

and former Chair of the Cultural Resource
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commission.

2

could come up here.

3

from the committee Members.

4

So I'd like to ask Ms. Duensing if she
There may be a few questions

And earlier we heard from Mr. Jencks who gave

5

testimony on this item, and he did serve as our

6

former Director of Public Works and Waste

7

Management.

8

questions that you

9

may have for him.

10

He is in the gallery available for any
my -- our committee Members

And the Chair also did invite Lori Sablas who

11

is the current Chair of the Cultural Resource

12

Commission.

13

invited.

14

I don't see Lori here today but she was

Just a brief introduction on this matter,

15

Members, the Planning Director transmitted a

16

proposed bill relating to the exclusion of historic

17

districts from the plan review waiver process.

18

according to the Director, the request was initiated

19

by the Cultural Resources Commission based on

20

potential abuse of the process.

21

councilmember Johnson forwarded a proposed bill that

22

would repeal section 106.4(b) of the uniform

23

Building Code which allows for plan review waivers.

24

Today I'd like to consider passage of either

25

of these proposed bills.

And

And subsequently,

But prior to any
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1

discussion on this, I would like to hear, first,

2

from the Planning Director or the representative

3

from the Planning Department and followed by later

4

it is the Chair's hope that Member Johnson can also

5

attend our proceedings today to give her perspective

6

as to the proposed bill and later on the comments

7

further comments I'd like to be given by the

8

Director of Public Works and Environmental

9

Management.

10

So at this time we'll start with Ms.

11

Duensing, if you could give us an overview of this

12

matter.

13

MS. DUENSING:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

This matter came

14

before the Cultural Resources Commission two years

15

ago in 2002 when a gentleman came into Public Works

16

for a Certificate of Occupancy.

17

asked for a plan review waiver and certified that he

18

was going to do everything in the appropriate

19

manner.

20

CHAIR MOLINA:

His architect had

Excuse me, Ms. Duensing, I'm sorry to

21

interrupt.

22

we can get you on tape loud and clear?

23

MR. SALDANA:

24

MS. DUENSING:

25

Can you speak more on the microphone so
Thank you.

Just pick it up.
Just manhandle it, okay.
The gentleman came into the CRC with a house
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1

that was designed in the modern style.

2

the Lahaina Historic District, which is also listed

3

within the National Historic Landmark District

4

recognized by the Federal Government.

5

He was in

And with the plan review waiver his architect

6

had certified that he was going to comply by all

7

county codes, but obviously he had not complied with

8

the design guidelines.

9

very sympathetic to this gentleman's predicament,

And the CRC, although it was

10

felt that it was very important to enforce historic

11

district guidelines and did not grant him his

12

certificate of Occupancy.

13

I was a commissioner at that time, and in

14

reading the law or the ordinance you see that

15

shoreline areas are protected.

16

commissioner, I thought that historic resources

17

deserve the same protection and I felt that the

18

cultural Resources Commission was the one to enforce

19

design guidelines and review them, not the architect

20

who in this case had responsibility.

21

And as a

A month later Brian Moto who was our Corp

22

Counsel at the time presented the proposed amendment

23

that the CRC had requested from him, and we voted to

24

submit language as drafted to the Mayor for

25

consideration.

Unfortunately it got lost along the
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1

line, and when I came to work for the County as the

2

Cultural Resources Planner I picked up things that

3

hadn't been done over the last two years and that's

4

why we're submitting it nearly two years late.
The gentleman did finally comply with the

5
6

design guidelines.

It really was not completely in

7

compliance, but the CRC felt obligated to give him

8

his permit and give him a certificate of Occupancy

9

so he can get on with his life.

Unfortunately for

10

him it was not a very good experience.

11

a lot of money as well.

12

Planning Department is in favor of dropping or

13

inserting into the language that historic districts

14

cannot use the plan review waiver process.

15
16
17

18

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

It cost him

And that's why the CRC and

Thank you, Ms. Duensing.

committee Members, any questions for Ms.
Duensing at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Member Kane?

Yeah, thank you.

Good -- good

19

morning, Ms. Duensing.

Thank you for being here.

20

And I know you can't speak for the Planning Director

21

because my reference is related to your -- your --

22

one of your latest comments about -- and I'll read

23

what he wrote in his communication, excuse me, to --

24

to us here at the Council and -- and to the

25

Committee.

And he wrote that despite the second
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1

remodel, the house is only marginally in conformance

2

with historic district design guideline.
So I'm trying to understand that because you

3

4

touched on that as well and then you kind of

5

explained why you folks moved forward.

6

it seems like it's black and white, either it is or

7

it isn't.

8

case, and this is kind of a side note just to

9

understand what the thinking was of the Commission

10

11

In my mind

Can you describe specifically in this

at the time.
MS. DUENSING:

Okay.

The thinking was is that when the

12

gentleman first came with his photographs, we looked

13

at them, he had a very modern appearance, added a

14

modern porch.

15

would have been appropriate for the historic

16

district --

17

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

18

MS. DUENSING:

It was not a plantation style, which

Uh-huh.

and would have complied with the design

19

guidelines.

20

with massive windows and a grand deck.

21

was only so much we could do without asking him to

22

completely tear down his remodel or his house and

23

start from scratch.

24
25

It was rather a kind of A-framed house
And there

So he put a new porch on it and took off a
couple of the other things.

And the CRC felt
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1

obligated to give him the benefit of the -- not the

2

benefit of the doubt, but to work with him.

3

tried the best he could to bring it into compliance,

4

but there was really nothing else he could do at

5

that point short of tearing everything down and

6

starting over again.

7

to him.

We didn't feel that was fair

To make matters worse, his architect was

8
9

He

practicing from somebody else -- from someplace else

10

on the mainland even though he had a Hawaii license

11

and he was long gone.

12

of the penalties associated with the project.

13

felt that it was our duty to just do the best we can

14

and help this man at least be allowed to use his

15

house.

So he couldn't even take any
So we

And that's what we meant by marginal

16
17

conformance.

18

asked him to make, but there was only so much he

19

could do because the house was -- it -- it should

20

have been in a new subdivision instead of in the

21

Lahaina Historic District.

22

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

He made the suggestions that CRC had

So the second remodel and his efforts

23

there were a result of recommendations that were

24

made at the first denial I guess you could call it?

25

MS. DUENSING:

That is correct.
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17

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

And so he was able to comply enough

2

for the body to consider it and -- and pass it

3

through?

4

MS. DUENSING:

Right.

We did the best we could in making

5

suggestions to him.

6

architect and it was a very expensive proposal.

7

he -- he basically followed through and did

8

everything we asked.

9

didn't like it, because he had complied with our

10
11

He was not working with an
And

And even though we still

request we granted him the historic district permit.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

My

my final question along that

12

lines and it will be my final for this before

13

yielding, Chair, when -- when the applicant came

14

before you folks, he was not in compliance, was --

15

was that a result of him not

16

rules that he had to follow?

not following the

So I guess I'm trying to find out why you

17
18

folks in the first place -- I mean, did you folks go

19

outside of the parameters of what's -- what's

20

guiding you folks and your principles of protecting

21

historic areas, did you guys -- did you folks go

22

outside of that in order to assist this person and

23

that compromised the historic district?

24
25

MS. DUENSING:

Basically, yes.

And the situation came to

be because the architect he used apparently did not
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recognize that he was designing a building in a --

2

designing a remodel in a historic district.

3

gentleman said that he didn't know he lived in a

4

design district too.

5

knowing what the local ordinances were.

6

long-time Lahaina resident.

7

believe that he didn't know he lived in a historic

8

district.

And the

So it was their fault for not
He's a

We found it hard to

But, yeah, we -- we are stuck with a

9

10

nonconforming house that doesn't fit into Lahaina.

11

So in that case we didn't do our job, but what else

12

could we do.

13
14
15

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

And I don't mean this flippantly, but

do your job and say no and
MS. DUENSING:

Yeah.

I mean, what we really wanted to do

16

as commissioners was take, you know, the -- the

17

complaint should have been filed against the

1B

architect because that's in the County ordinance

19

too.

20

But this guy was long gone.
And, yeah, we would have liked to do our job

21

and I think that was one of the biggest

22

disappointments as a commissioner was that you can't

23

always do your job, maybe you're outvoted.

24

this case, we just felt like we would have been

25

punishing the -- the citizen who pays his taxes even
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2
3

19

further and we just felt like he'd suffered enough.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

disrespectfully.

4

MS. DUENSING:

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

6

MS. DUENSING:

7

And please don't take my comments
I mean, you know --

I -- I know what you're saying and I -Yeah.

-- that's the way I felt as a commissioner

too --

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

9

MS. DUENSING:

Yeah.

because I always try to do the right

10

thing.

11

districts, and I feel that they deserve protection

12

and we should do the best we can.

13

we were very limited in what our best was.

14

And I feel very strongly about the historic

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

Thank you.

And in this case,

And Chair, I

15

didn't mean to go too far off, but I -- I'm just

16

referencing the -- the marginal compliance, I guess,

17

was

18

and it was included in the remarks.

19
20

that -- that's something that caught my eye

MS. DUENSING:

Could I please add one comment to that as

well, if I may.

21

CHAIR MOLINA:

Go ahead.

22

MS. DUENSING:

One of the reasons why we would also accept

23

that marginal compliance is that it's not like he

24

was on Front Street.

25

not necessarily obvious in the historic district.

It was a house kind of back,
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1

It was hidden by other structures.

2

him a lot.

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

So that helped

So the reason we're here is because

4

if we don't do this, then really where's the line

5

and we give too much discretion to a body in this

6

case who took it upon themselves to go outside of

7

their parameters to make a decision, so we're

8

looking at this today so we can avoid this in the

9

future?

10

MS. DUENSING:

Exactly because I don't think it's fair to

11

the -- the County taxpayer in this case, and I think

12

that it takes the

13

given the CRC in the County code to do its job

14

because it lets the architects do its job.

15

this case, he didn't do it.

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

the power that the County has

And in

On the other hand though, wouldn't it

17

be penalizing the -- all the people 'who have -- are

18

aware of the laws, who conform?

19

-- the -- the reason why the law was written the

20

way it was, was because it would provide some

21

streamline even if it's in a historic district that

22

people understand although we're providing

23

streamline, on the other hand, if you don't conform,

24

the answer is no.

25

And that this

And this was meant

in this case, there was a
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1

discretionary call that was made.

2

that discretion which went outside of the

3

parameters, now we're faced with, you know, for the

4

vast majority of people who come through this

5

process, the waiver process, knowing that they got

6

to follow the rules, now we're going to put it back

7

the other way.
It's just -- you see what I'm saying?

8

9

And I

-- I agree with you --

10

MS. DUENSING:

11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

12

And because of

Uh-huh.
you know, protecting shoreline,

protecting historic districts --

13

MS. DUENSING:

Uh-huh.

14

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

absolutely.

So, you know, I'm

15

inclined to support this.

16

that, you know, it's being driven by this particular

17

situation, which seems to be a big one because it

18

would have cost a taxpayer, you know, huge amounts

19

of money to correct it.

20

MS. DUENSING:

21

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

22

MS. DUENSING:

But it's just unfortunate

Could I respond to that, please.
Final point, Mr. Chair.

I -- I do think that now that we have a

23

Cultural Resources Planner and I do also want to

24

give credit to the other planners who did historic

25

district approvals before me, but if a applicant
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1

comes in with a properly designed plan, it is

2

streamlined because he's followed all the design

3

guidelines.

4

citizen, and we're

5

If he doesn't follow the guidelines and wants

6

exceptions, then he goes to the Cultural Resources

7

commission.

8

process if applicants just do the right thing.

9

We go by the book, this looks nice, Joe
we're happy to grant approval.

So I think we can streamline the

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Yeah, and just a comment, no

10

question, no further questions, Chair.

It just

11

depends on at what point are you going to look at it

12

because it could be sitting on your desk that that's

13

high worth of other applications as well.

14

that that person is being added back in, the stack

15

gets even higher now.

And now

16

So if I'm the person over here, then I got to

17

wait until -- and then, yeah, I get streamlined once

18

you look at it.

19

streamlined.

20

process that we're trying to help alleviate through

21

the process.

22
23

MS. DUENSING:

But until then, it's not being

It's -- it's being caught up in a

But I think I -- I was hired to help

alleviate that process because --

24

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

25

MS. DUENSING:

Yeah.

-- now we have a Cultural Resources
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23

Planner.

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

3

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

No, we appreciate it.

Thank you.

Thank you, Member Kane.

Before we

4

proceed with your line of questioning here, the

5

Chair welcomes Councilmember Johnson to our

6

proceedings today.

7

questions for Ms. Duensing?

8
9

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Committee Members, any other

Yeah.

Member Tavares?

In the plan review waiver

process, maybe that's not for Dawn but for Ralph,

10

who signs off on the plan review waiver if it's in a

11

historic district, is it just treated the same as

12

any other permit?

13
14

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

would be granted by the Director of Public Works.

15

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

16

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

17

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

18

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

19

20

Basically the plan review waivers

And regardless of where it is.
As long as it fits
I mean, the -- the building, yeah.
it fits the existing ordinance,

unless it's out -- unless it's in the shoreline.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

So if it's in a historic district,

21

then it doesn't -- it doesn't come back to review

22

until the CO?

23
24
25

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

That's right and that -- that's --

that's the risk that the users of -VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Uh-huh.
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MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

-- the process are -- are undertaking.

2

If their professional that they hired doesn't

3

comply, it will get caught at the CO.

4

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Do you folks have any other
to solving this problem?

Because

5

alternative to

6

I can -- I can understand why we don't want to make

7

a process any more, you know, onerous than it is.

8

But at the same token, if we don't catch these

9

things early we are causing a great amount of

10

expense for the person who's trying to construct or

11

remodel a building.
So is -- is there a way internally that in

12

13

the plan review waiver process that it can be

14

flagged if it is in the historic district and then

15

those get a review by the -- by the Planner, like

16

Dawn?

17

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

18

our comments

19

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

20

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

I -- I think that's what we said in

Oh, okay.
-- to the Chair, basically, that we

21

don't have a problem with the proposed legislation

22

provided that the Planning Department does flag

23

out --

24

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

25

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Uh-huh.
-- the parcels that are in the
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1

historic district so that when someone comes in, our

2

building permit clerk will look at it and say, wait

3

a minute, the process isn't available for this

4

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

5

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Uh-huh.
for this property.
we don't know.

As it is right

I mean, the way the

6

now, we don't

7

legislation was set out was -- was really if you

8

qualify for -- it's a single-family home, the value,

9

the improvements are -- are a certain amount --

10

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

11

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

12
13

Uh-huh.
-- and it's not in a shoreline, then

you can use the process.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Well, is there like, you know, a

14

sheet that says -- that flags it out for the -- for

15

the person coming in that says this is in a historic

16

district, you are required to follow all the

17

guidelines in the historic district, you know, as a

18

reminder to the architect and the owner?

19
20

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

that question because I'm --

21

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

22

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

23

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

24
25

Can -- can you go ahead and repeat

Yeah.
-- I'm not quite getting it.
Because you have to look at it at

some point to even give the -- the
CHAIR MOLINA:

Excuse me, Mr. Nagamine, you
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1

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

2

CHAIR MOLINA:

3

here.

-- permit.

Mr. Nagamine, you can come and have a seat
You can have --

4

MR. NAGAMINE:

No, it's okay.

5

CHAIR MOLINA:

Can you speak in the mike?

6

MR. NAGAMINE:

Go ahead.

7

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Yeah.

So in the process, a person

8

brings in a plan and they want a plan review

9

waiver.

It goes to the Director's office, it's done

10

administratively.

11

administrative review process, can it be flagged

12

with a sheet, maybe it's pink or orange or

13

something, that says this is in a historic district,

14

you are responsible to follow the guidelines,

15

period.

16

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

At that point can in the

That -- that can be done provided that

17

in the KIVA system the parcels are flagged.

18

now the parcels for a historic district are not

19

necessarily flagged.

20

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Uh-huh.

Right

Because I -- I can see on

21

one -- you know, on one hand, yes, it is the

22

responsibility of the architect and the owner to

23

comply with all of the laws, zoning laws and -- such

24

as this one in the historic district guidelines.

25

Yet, the one that gets -- doesn't get through the
RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

PWT 6/03/04

27

1

proper way, like this example, the consequence is so

2

horrendous to the person.

3

wanted to really be by the book, you could have made

4

him tear the whole thing down and start over.

Because if you folks

So how are we serving the community when we

5
6

do things like that?

7

If there's another way to flag that out and -- and

8

make the person aware -- more aware that they're in

9

a -- a special area.

10

That -- that's my question.

And it could -- it could be

something else besides the historic district.
But short of having them go through the

11

is a

12

entire plan review process, which we know is

13

long one, if there is a way to get that plan review

14

waiver with proper notification or notification of

15

some sort to the owner or the architect and the

16

architect that this has special conditions to meet.

17

That -- that's my question.

18

MR. NAGAMINE:

Actually the way the process works right

19

now is that the applicant would come into our office

20

and apply for a building permit, and at that time

21

they will generally indicate whether they want to go

22

with the plan review waiver process.

23

If that's the -- the choice, then there's a

24

couple of forms that they need to fill out, and one

25

is the certification that the project complies with
RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

28

PWT 6/03/04

1

all rules and regs and the second one is the

2

non-occupancy agreement, that they agree not to

3

occupy the project until they have a sign-off from

4

all of the agencies that would have jurisdiction

5

over that project, okay?

6

forms.

So those are the two

The forms are signed by the Director and I

7
8

believe Corp Counsel signs those forms.

9

they're -- they're signed by the

So

the licensed

10

architect or engineer, the property owner, the

11

Director, and Corp Counsel.

12
13

14

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

So you already got -- you already

have a process in place
MR. NAGAMINE:

Yeah, yeah, we do have -- so that would be

15

the certification and the non-occupancy agreement

16

process.

17

building permit application and the permit is issued

18

based on the certification, okay.

At that point there is no review with a

Once the building permit is issued, we do

19

20

send a copy of the issued building permit to all of

21

the agencies that would have reviewed the

22

application.

23

was issued, okay.

24

they would know that they hadn't reviewed it yet,

25

okay?

So they are on notice that a project
And I guess if they're organized,
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1

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

2

MR. NAGAMINE:

3

Uh-huh.

But it's clearly stamped on the -- on the

permit that it is a plan review waiver project.

4

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

5

MR. NAGAMINE:

Okay.

Uh-huh.
I

I -- I guess if we lived in a

6

perfect world and we had enough staffing and

7

everybody and we had the resources, then each

8

department would pick up on that and review the

9

application right away and let the applicant know if

10

there's something wrong with the project.

11

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

12

MR. NAGAMINE:

Okay.

Uh-huh.
But I think things falls through the

13

cracks, and a lot of times these projects proceed up

14

until the point where they're ready to occupy.

15

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

16

MR. NAGAMINE:

Uh-huh.

And at which time they're trying to either

17

get a CO or -- or a release from their non-occupancy

18

agreement, at which time they need to go back to the

19

agencies and try to get their approvals.

20

is usually when all of the deficiencies come out,

21

very late in the game.

22

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

23

MR. NAGAMINE:

Okay.

And this

Uh-huh.
And I -- I believe that's what

24

happened in this case, in the historic district, is

25

that they were trying to get their CO or they were
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1

trying to get their release.

2

the Planning Department to get their approval,

3

Planning said, wait a minute, there's too many

4

things wrong with this project.

5
6

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

MR. NAGAMINE:

8

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

10

Uh-huh.
then it goes to all the -- the

different areas that it would have gone through if
it had been a regular

11

MR. NAGAMINE:

12

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

13

MR. NAGAMINE:

14

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

15

So when they come in for the

-- for the CO or the release from the agreement --

7

9

Uh-huh.

And when they went to

Yeah.
-- a non-plan review waiver?

Yeah.
So what is the advantage to the plan

review waiver?

16

MR. NAGAMINE:

If it had been a plan review waiver?

17

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

18

MR. NAGAMINE:

Uh-huh.

Is that you're able to proceed with a

19

project without having the delay of having each

20

agency review the -- the project.

21

process could be months.

22

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

23

MR. NAGAMINE:

And that review

It could

Uh-huh.

You know, the -- the applicant, if they

24

choose this option, is basically saving, I would

25

guess, two or three months in getting the project
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off ground.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Uh-huh.

But in this particular case

they save the months, maybe not save the money
MR. NAGAMINE:

You know, in this particular case, the one

that we're talking about

6

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

7

MR. NAGAMINE:

Yeah.

-- because it would have had gone to the

8

CRC and a public hearing and all that, by then

9

proceeding when they did they probably saved in the

10

neighborhood of three or four months --

11

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

12

MR. NAGAMINE:

13

Uh-huh.

-- because there's public hearings, the

scheduling and all that involved, yeah.

14

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

15

though.

16

MR. NAGAMINE:

17

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

But not to mention the expense

Yeah.
Dawn, do you know what the expense

18

was to -- to redo -- to bring it into marginal

19

conformance?

20

MS. DUENSING:

I have no idea, but I'm sure it wasn't

21

cheap.

22

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

23
24
25

Did he have to take the deck off and

redo it?
MS. DUENSING:
ago.

I don't recall.

This was a couple years

He had to make significant modifications
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1

because I think he had to take off the screened-in

2

porch and a few other things like that.

3

know, had he just -- he wouldn't even have come into

4

the CRC if his plans would have complied to begin

5

with.

6

that administratively if they followed the design

7

guidelines.

You don't even need CRC approval.

We can do

So--

8

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

9

MS. DUENSING:

Uh-huh.

that would have been a couple months

10

time saved.

11

four months.

12

expense but it was significant.

13

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

14

CHAIR MOLINA:

15

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

16

CHAIR MOLINA:

17

And, you

So it doesn't necessarily have to take
But, yeah, we never asked him how much

Thank you.

Okay.
Thanks, Chair.

All right.

Thank you, Member Tavares.

Committee Members, the Chair would like to

18

finish up with the line of questioning for Ms.

19

Duensing, and the Chair will come back to -- we'll

20

give Mr. Coloma-Agaran, as well as Mr. Nagamine, an

21

opportunity to give their overview and thoughts on

22

this matter.

23

Duensing at this time?

24

Johnson?

25

So are there any questions for Ms.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

Councilmember

Dawn, I know that, you know, about

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

33

PWT 6/03/04

1

the situation that you're speaking about, but I

2

wondered, you know, from the Cultural Resources'

3

perspective, from the commission, have they issued

4

any kind of opinion as to what they would like to

5

see done in terms of the overall commission?

6

MS. DUENSING:

I'm not sure I understand your question.

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Well, if the plan review waiver,

8

you know, is something that is creating a problem or

9

has created a problem, are the majority of the

10

members of the Cultural Resources Commission in

11

favor of just, you know, not including that at all?

12

MS. DUENSING:

Yes, this action that we're requesting was

13

voted on by the Cultural Resources Commission two

14

years ago.

15

submitted since being an employee was action taken

16

two years ago as a commission to just eliminate the

17

historic districts from the plan review waiver

18

process.

19
20
21

This is not something that I have

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And -- and why did it take so long

then to get here to this point?
MS. DUENSING:

As I explained, it came before us I think

22

it was February, 2002.

The next month Brian Moto

23

had prepared the language for us.

24

on it.

25

letter, to send it up to the Mayor's Office and get

CRC took action

We asked the Planning Department to draft a
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1

it going, and nothing happened.

2

many months.

We asked for it

And because we -- we were always told because

3

4

we didn't have staff, there was no one person

5

minding the CRC, the work didn't get done.

6

I became employed by the County, I had a list of

7

things that never were finished when I was on the

8

commission that now I'm trying to tackle and -- and

9

see through to completion.

10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

And when

And -- and that's -- you

11

know, and I apologize because you probably went over

12

this earlier, you know, so I apologize for being

13

late.

14

you would see then is that there is no way to

15

know, with the process that's currently in place to

16

continuously monitor throughout this whole process

17

and be there every second while they're doing the

18

work.

19

But the, you know, the biggest problem that

MS. DUENSING:

you

Yeah, I don't see any way to make the

20

process work because even if, as Mr. Nagamine says,

21

it goes around to the different departments, without

22

seeing the plans how do we know that the architect's

23

complying.

24

to make sure that the historic district has

25

buildings that are in compliance with design

And that's really the job of the CRC is
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guidelines.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And even sometimes the plans don't

match what ends up being built.

4

MS. DUENSING:

That's correct as well.

5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

So you would have to have someone

6

basically then on site to continuously monitor this

7

which --

8
9

MS. DUENSING:

I don't think we go on site, but, you know,

we usually get complaints from the public and then

10

we go make our site visits to insure compliance.

11

That's usually the way it works.

12

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

13

MS. DUENSING:

14

Okay.

Thank you very much.

We couldn't possibly have one person

monitoring the entire historic district.

15

CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you, Member Johnson.

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

17

CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you.

The Chair has one question for you,

18

Ms. Duensing.

19

districts or repealing the plan review waiver

20

process, what recommendations could you provide to

21

improve the current system?

22

MS. DUENSING:

In lieu of excluding the historic

I think at a minimum that if the current

23

system were to continue, we would request the plans

24

of the design so at least we could insure that they

25

would comply, that the right person would see the
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1

plans and -- and know that it was in compliance so

2

that if it wasn't we could point out the

3

deficiencies early rather than saying tear your

4

addition down and fix it when the project is

5

completed.

6

CHAIR MOLINA:

Do you feel the current staffing of the

7

departments is adequate to, I guess, you know,

8

improve the current system or -- or to, I guess,

9

make things more accountable, I guess, to spot any

10

so-called red flags or do you feel that additional

11

staffing would be needed?

12

MS. DUENSING:

I don't think it would require additional

13

staffing because one way or another if you go

14

through the building permit process or the review

15

waiver process, it's just something that's part of

16

our jobs and we would have to do it anyway.

17

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Member Pontanilla?

18

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Chair.

Ms. Duensing, in regards to Member Molina's

19

20

question, you know, what would help in regards to

21

this matter here, do you feel that if we had proper

22

inspection or priority inspections on historic areas

23

for any construction activity, do you think that

24

would help?

25

MS. DUENSING:

Yeah, it would.

I know that Lahaina
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Restoration Foundation and other people active in

2

Lahaina have suggested the need for a historic

3

district officer.

4

that could monitor the historic districts and check

5

with construction and everything else, yeah, that

6

would be very helpful.

7

And if we had somebody like that

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

But would that particular

8

person be a part of the CRC or part of the Public

9

Works Department inspection area?

10

MS. DUENSING:

I think it would probably have to be

11

somebody in the zoning Administration and

12

Enforcement Division, ZAED, and would have to be

13

somebody who's trained and got some background at

14

least in architecture and design guidelines.

15

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

16

CHAIR MOLINA:

17

18

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

Thank you, Member Pontanilla.

Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes, and if you -- I apologize if

19

you've answered this earlier, but how often is the

20

plan review waiver process used, you know, how many

21

applications do you usually get let's say in a

22

period of a year?

23

MS. DUENSING:

I don't think I can answer that question.

24

This is the only one that I was aware of while I was

25

a Cultural Resources Commissioner.

But I don't know
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2

if other ones went through and -- and were okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Because, Mr. Chair, that would be

3

really important to know.

4

process that's being under-utilized or being very

5

infrequently utilized, then I would really need to

6

at least for me as a Councilmember to -- to make a

7

reasoned decision as to whether that should happen.

8

I would -- I would really like to know that

9

information.

10

MR. NAGAMINE:

If it's something -- a

Yeah, I've -- I've got some information

11

relative to that.

12

started in '92, the -- the latter part of '92.

13

as we expect, we had just very few because I think

14

we went into effect like November or December of

15

'92.

16

review waiver permits and it steadily grew up until

17

the mid-nineties, '95, '96, '97, at which point we

18

were averaging during those three years about 150

19

plan review waivers.

20

The plan review waiver option
And

The following year we had like 57 issued plan

And since that time we've seen a steady

21

decline in the number of applications issued

22

permits.

23

only issued nine and again this year thus far we're

24

at nine.

25

we might get up to about a dozen or so or 19,

Now we're at a point where last year we

So maybe if you, you know, projected that

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

PWT 6/03/04

1

2

39

something like that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

So it would seem that

3

what's happening is the very thing that is being

4

illustrated here which is these problems that have

5

cropped up along the way --

6

MR. NAGAMINE:

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

a

MR. NAGAMINE:

9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

10
11

MR. NAGAMINE:

Yeah.
-- have actually --

Yeah.
-- been a deterrent.

No, I have not -- I have not questioned

people as to why they're not doing this.

But

there's a couple of things that would come to my
13

mind and one is that, that people are better

14

certifying or suddenly realizing that there's more

15

to it than just building code compliance, that they

16

also need to consider the planning, fire, and health

17

requirements.

18

with them.

19

That has become an important issue

And secondly, it could be that they're

20

beginning to realize that the paperwork that's

21

involved, there's more paperwork involved with the

22

plan review waiver process because at the end of the

23

project you need to get clearances from all these

24

agencies, where had you not gone through the process

25

at the tail end you wouldn't need all of those
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1

clearances.

2

more paperwork involved.

3

So in some aspects it's a little bit

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And -- and in that regard, have

4

you found that there's an additional concern too

5

with regard to the people that are monitoring this,

6

the people that are actually filing these

7

applications, that they are in some instances

8

becoming liable if any of those elements are left

9

out, have you seen that at all?

10
11

MR. NAGAMINE:

You know, I really don't know if that's

occurring out there.
And -- and maybe another factor also is that

12
13

we had a couple of professionals out in the

14

community that were very proficient with the use of

15

the plan review waivers, and I guess they kind of

16

fell in love with the process.

17

back we incorporated a rule change in our

18

administrative rules where we limited plan review

19

waivers down to ten per professional.

20

words, you could only have ten open plan review

21

waivers at anytime.

22

helped reduce the number of applications that were

23

coming in.

24

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON;

25

CHAIR MOLINA:

And several years

In other

And so I think that kind of

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you, Member Johnson.
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At this time the Chair would like to give

1

2

Member Johnson an opportunity to provide the

3

committee with

4
5

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Chairman, I -- I want to ask

questions,.

6

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

7

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

8

CHAIR MOLINA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Of-Ms. Duensing.

-- Ms. Duensing.

Proceed.

Ms. Duensing.

Did I hear correctly earlier this

10

morning that you mentioned that normally the CRC

11

does not review those plans prior to issuance of

1.2

permits, whether it be a building permit or others,

13

Ms. Duensing?

14

MS. DUENSING:

Yes.

If the plans are submitted to the

15

Planning Department and they follow all the design

16

guidelines as indicated in the Lahaina design

17

guidelines, it can be administratively approved.

18

there's a deviation from the design guidelines, then

19

it goes to the Cultural Resources Commission.

20

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

I ask that question, you know,

21

because as our community has become modern and

22

vibrant and complex, so has government.

23

is not simple.

24

the growing demands of our communities.

25

If

Government

Government is quite complex to meet

And the way I understand Chapter 2.88, which
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creates the Cultural Resources Commission, under

2

section 060, letter F, my understanding is the

3

commission shall provide design review for projects

4

affecting any building or structure within historic

5

districts including granting of permits.

6

it's -- you folks don't have a choice.

7

the code.

8
9

MS. DUENSING:

So to me
And that's

That is the code and I'm familiar with it.

I think Corp Counsel may be able to better answer

10

that because the Planning Department has done

11

administratively reviewing and approving permits for

12

as long as I've been involved, which has been more

13

than five years now.

14

don't feel able to answer that question.

15

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

And I'm not sure why and I

And Ms. Duensing, I bring that up

16

because you -- you are -- as a former commissioner,

17

you and your commission -- fellow commissioners did

18

utilize a provision in the code, which was or which

19

is to forward proposed ordinances to make

20

improvements or adjustments to the code.

21

what we have before us -- one of the options before

22

us is exactly what the code allows the commission

23

through you, through the commissioners to do.

24
25

And so

And so I for one believe that the structure
itself is still quite valid.

And obviously we've
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1

had some shortfalls in -- in our people doing the

2

reviews, but nonetheless as we have been informed it

3

has been caught.
But, you know, for me, Corp Counsel, I -- I

4

5

would like to hear what you have since Ms. Duensing

6

has asked for your comments.

7

CHAIR MOLINA:

8

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

9

Corporation Counsel?
And that's why, Mr. Chairman, the

complexities is you may not only need to look at the

10

one part of the code that is -- an adjustment is

11

trying to be made.

12

may be interrelated that, you know, maybe we need a

13

total code review or -- or something to update and

14

allow better administration of our county laws.

15
16

17

CHAIR MOLINA:

So noted.

There's so many chapters that

Corporation Counsel, are you

ready to respond to Member Hokama's -MS. YOUNG:

Yes.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

without knowing

18

the history of how the process has come to not have

19

these projects go before the Cultural Resources

20

commission, I would be unable to answer that.

21

would want to know the background of -- of how we

22

got here.

23

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

24

MS. DUENSING:

Mr. Chair, I -- I would guess --

25

CHAIR MOLINA:

Ms. Duensing?

Okay.
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1

MS. DUENSING:

-- that the reason why they're

2

administratively reviewed and approved is because

3

the CRC being a volunteer commission probably could

4

not meet enough times in a month to do all the

5

the permits being requested in the historic

6

districts.

7

CHAIR MOLINA:

8

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

9

Member Hokama?
Well, then you would come and ask

for a ordinance change that would allow the

10

discretion.

But the code is specific.

The code

11

requires the commission to do the review for all

12

requests, not some requests.

13

know that, Ms. Duensing, and -- and it's not -- and

14

again, you know, I'm sorry, you're the face that

15

we're dealing with today and I don't mean to jump on

16

-- on any individual.

And -- and I know you

17

Because for me, like some of the other

18

Members, I believe that the historic district

19

provisions needs to be significantly adhered to, not

20

peripherally or marginally but significantly adhered

21

to.

22

legislative body and we can request revisions,

23

amendments, deletions that we can live by.

24

that's my comment.

25

And if that doesn't work, come before the

So -- so

And again, under what I heard earlier when I
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1

think Mr. Agaran mentioned that the Director signs

2

off, Mr. Director, are you referring to you yourself

3

in your position as Director of Public Works or

4

you're talking about the Director of Planning?

5

so we have clarity, please.

6

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

7

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Just

It's Public Works Director signs off.
Ms. Duensing, did the commission

8

ever talk about what happens if this current owner

9

or a subsequent new owner comes in and let's say he

10

wants to do a repair or renovation, then would it go

11

back to the more strict application of the historic

12

design guidelines or will he continue to be allowed

13

to just meet the marginal standard?

14

MS. DUENSING:

They're supposed to meet the design

15

guidelines, period.

16

county ordinance and that is the intention of the

17

cultural Resources Commission.

18

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

That is the intention of the

So variances, conditional uses,

19

those things, the -- it is in your knowledge the

20

commission in the past has never granted those

21

things to --

22

MS. DUENSING:

23

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

24
25

The commission doesn't have --- non-conform to -- to the -- the

guidelines?
MS. DUENSING:

Yeah, the -- it's important to remember

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

46

PWT 6/03/04

1

that design guidelines are at times very subjective

2

and there will be disagreements as -- among

3

commissioners.

4

was a commissioner.

5

according to some people deviations and other people

6

won't see it as deviations.

7
8

9

And there were many of them when I

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

And sometimes there would be

I -- I'm sure you folks have your

challenges with ADA requirements on old -MS. DUENSING:

Yeah.

10

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

11

MS. DUENSING:

12

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

13

MS. DUENSING:

-- historic buildings.

Yeah.
I understand that.

But -- but there are -- you know, we do

14

follow the Secretary of Interior's guidelines for

15

historic preservation and rehabilitation because

16

Maui is a certified local government by the National

17

Park Service and those are the design guidelines

1B

that we use.

19

a technical brief published by the National Park

20

Service that explains the best way to do that for

21

older and historic buildings.

22
23

24
25

For instance, ADA compliance, there is

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
morning.
CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you for your comments this

Thank you, Chairman.
Okay.

Thank you, Member Hokama.

Any final

questions for Ms. Duensing before the Chair proceeds
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1

with Member Johnson's comments?

2

Member Johnson?

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

Seeing none,

I just wanted to find out for the

4

record, is the Cultural Resources Commission also

5

meeting this morning?

6

MS. DUENSING:

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

8

Thank you.

9

CHAIR MOLINA:

They are.

Okay.

Okay.

That's why Lori sent you.

Member Johnson, at this time you

10

have the floor to provide the Committee with any

11

background as it relates to the proposed bill you

12

have.

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes, and the -- the reason, I

14

think, that this all came about was when I

15

understood the process, and it was from actually

16

testimony from Christina Hemming about the

17

difficulties and about the history and the

18

experience of the plan review waiver process that

19

ordinarily this is not something that would be

20

viewed as a bad thing, but I think that with the

21

litigation that had resulted from this, also I

22

believe there was a situation with Poolenalena which

23

had come up, other properties, what I had tried to

24

do was to look at the importance and significance of

25

the plan review waiver.
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As I understand it and you can correct me if

2

I'm wrong, under the Uniform Building Code it's

3

basically a national type process and it's a

4

nationally recognized procedure where once it's

5

adopted you basically incorporate a Federal or, you

6

know, national guideline.

7

Ordinarily this although it doesn't

8

specifically prohibit a plan review waiver, a plan

9

review waiver would not be a part of the Uniform

10

Building Code.

11

wouldn't ordinarily see that.

12

that authority to somebody who is not a government

13

employee who's going to be continuously checking

14

and, you know, I guess moving these building permits

15

through a process.

16

That's my understanding.

What I did and if

You

You wouldn't delegate

if you can indulge me,

17

Mr. Chair, I'd just like to

18

some of the historical information, I tried to get a

19

sense of, well, is this the first time this problem

20

has come up.

21

the Human Services and Parks Committee minutes what

22

had happened, and I'll just quote briefly.

23

from Mr. Rapacz, and the Chair of the committee at

24

that time was Mr. Enriques.

25

you know, through

And back in June 14th of 2000 under

This is

So Mr. Rapacz as they're discussing plan
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review waiver states:

2

mistakes happening.

3

human beings.

4

The point is the kind of mistakes are the same kind

5

over and over again.

6

needed because the mistakes tend to go against the

7

public interest and for the individual interest.

They will always happen.

We're

We're involved in decision-making.

That's why the oversight is

One of the things that has resulted in all of

8
9

It's not just that there are

these questions is the plan review waiver process.

10

You may know about that.

It basically allows rather

11

than having the various county departments review

12

permits, building permits, a licensed architect or

13

engineer can just sign off and say that everything

14

is legal.

15

So he points out one of those shortcomings.

16

And I'll skip forward to another part and this was

17

also Mr. Rapacz speaking.

18

the June 14th, 2000 minutes of their committee

19

meeting.

20

take.

21

review waiver law so that at least it's not

22

permitted in the special management area so that

23

there will always be some special management area or

24

some shoreline setback review even if someone has a

25

plan review waiver.

It says:

And this also was from

Also, it's an action you can

You can initiate amendments to the plan
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So this was back in 2000 that there were

2

already some problems being pointed out.

3

thing and this is from Public Works and Water

4

committee on August 4th of 2000, and I'm just

5

reading from the committee report.

6

this is from the report issued August 4th of 2000

7

and it is

8

from this committee report.

9

The other

And I believe

I'll just read from the little line

Your committee also received testimony from

10

Michelle Anderson, Susan Bradford, and Lucienne

11

deNaie raising concerns about the plan review waiver

12

process for building permits and shoreline areas.

13

They stated that the process has been abused to

14

allow illegal shoreline developments without

15

repercussions.

16

also expressed their support for the proposed bill

17

on indigenous architecture.

18

Ms. Bradford and Ms. -- Ms. DeNaie

And then it goes on to say:

The Director

19

stated that the process allows for the issuance of

20

conditional building permits based on the assurances

21

of legal compliance by professionals such as

22

architects.

23

owners are given the opportunity to rectify the

24

violations and -- and then subjected to daily fines.

25

If violations are found, property

He further noted that the daily fines have
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1

been increased under its department's proposed

2

revisions to the Uniform Building Code.

3

committee expressed its concern about possible

4

abuses of the plan review waiver process in

5

shoreline areas.

6

Poolenalena.

7

Your

And then they talk about

But that is kind of where I came to

8

understand a little bit more about the process and

9

its shortcomings.

And that is why one of the

10

reasons, you know, I wanted to bring forward a total

11

repeal of this; also the infrequency because I

12

wasn't sure until Ralph said today, but I had been

13

advised, you know, unofficially that the process was

14

not being used as much; and also because of the

15

litigation, which some people were saying almost as

16

if it's a he-said-she-said kind of situation where

17

they're then alleging that members of the

18

administration or members who are staff were not

19

giving proper instruction.

20

They weren't properly advising or they were

21

doing something that led to this error being made.

22

And then the applicant or person who had basically

23

been, you know, wanting to use the plan review

24

waiver threw it back on the county saying that it's

25

the County's responsibility now because you gave us
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1

incorrect advice, you put us at risk, we spent

2

hundreds and thousands of dollars correcting these

3

errors, so they litigate against us.

4

And I know that that has happened.

And, you

5

know, I'm not going to speak about one of the cases

6

that are probably under litigation, still under

7

litigation right now, and -- and the money that that

8

has cost us.

9

But my whole reasoning in looking at a repeal

10

of this is that how is it really serving the public.

11

If it's a question of expediting permits and moving

12

them through in a more timely basis, then my

13

solution would be to provide the personnel or to

14

provide a mechanism whereby somebody has to get

15

assistance or certain answers within a certain

16

period of time.

That's a proactive approach.

17

This to me opens the door for not only abuse,

18

but the potential for litigation against the County,

19

it opens the door for huge expenses made through

20

inadvertent errors or maybe lack of knowledge on the

21

part of architects or professionals who then can

22

also be subject to litigation because under their

23

either professional liability coverage or errors and

24

omissions type insurance, they're put at risk

25

because now they don't want to do it if it's
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1

resulting in them having made an error which results

2

in all of this financial hardship.
So I question the effectiveness of the whole

3

4

entire reasoning behind it.

5

there may be areas where I believe it -- it might

6

not be completely legal because, you know, if there

7

are certain tenets in the law that you have to

8

adhere to, does this go beyond the scope of what's

9

stated in the law and -- and our code.

I question -- still

And if the

10

public is to be served, I don't think it's helping

11

that we end up having to use the public's money now

12

to litigate this in court.
And that's my basic reasoning behind having

13

14

introduced a total repeal of this particular thing.

15

If it's not being utilized and if it's creating more

16

problems, I'd prefer to find other solutions that

17

really give some protection to the general public,

18

but also protect the county from liability and also

19

the people that are in the field.

20

very innocently make a mistake and then you end up

21

having your insurance potentially cancelled for your

22

professional liability because you've had too many

23

claims.

24
25

Because you may

So that's my reasoning, Mr. Chair.

I -- I

don't know what more I can say other than I've tried
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1

to just approach it from the perspective that it --

2

it needs to be examined.

3

extreme, then, you know, so be it.

4

that if we at least investigate what the benefits

5

are, what the liabilities are, I think we'll have a

6

better idea of where we can go.

7
8

CHAIR MOLINA:

And if my solution seems
But I believe

Thank you.

Thank you, Member Johnson, for your

comments and background of your proposed bill.
At this time the Chair would like to now give

9

10

an opportunity for the Public Works Department to

11

give their comments and response.

12

with Mr. Coloma-Agaran, then followed by Mr.

13

Nagamine.

14

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

We'll start first

As we noted in

15

our response to your -- your request for comments,

16

looking at -- at the legislation we're not opposed

17

to creating this further exemption in the law.

18

in order to make it work as an exemption, we do

19

request that then the Planning Department should

20

flag out the parcels in our system that will easily

21

indicate to your building permit clerks whether or

22

not a property is in a historic district and

23

therefore that the process wouldn't be available to

24

them.

25

But

The general comment that I just want to make
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1

is, is that you should keep in mind what the policy

2

decision was in the Council creating this exemption

3

in the first place, and that is that you are willing

4

to let the private sector take the risk in following

5

this process and that the private sector includes

6

the individuals who hire these professionals.

7

it's unfortunate that, you know, the decision is

8

made at the tail end that it doesn't seem fair to

9

treat the landowner -- to make the landowner comply

10
11

And

with what the law require.
In theory as Mr. Jencks testified, the -- the

12

ordinance worked as it was supposed to work.

13

did not receive their certificate of occupancy

14

because their professional failed to comply with

15

what they -- what they had agreed to comply with and

16

the County could have required them to comply.

17

in this instance, the county agency decided not to.

18

They

And

The real -- the real issue, I think, really

19

is as councilwoman Johnson mentioned, that is, what

20

is the policy underlying in this ordinance and that

21

is really there's a concern out there that the

22

process for review and issuance of building permits

23

takes too long.

24

at -- at those issues.

25

And you really need to take a look

In our Department, I think we're -- we're
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1

fairly comfortable that we can -- we can do our

2

review in -- efficiently and -- and thoroughly.

3

believe Ms. Duensing now says that for the historic

4

district that that's -- that that will also occur,

5

and I believe you also recently did provide the

6

Planning Department with additional -- with

7

additional bodies.

8

told by the Planning Department that in certain

9

areas, that they think they can turn around a review

10

within a week.

I

And I think recently we've been

But, you know, they have 30 days.

I -- I don't know if you want to repeal this

11
12

necessarily.

13

now why there's been less use of it and -- in

14

reality.

15

that we've limited now the number of open -- open

16

plan review waivers that anyone architect or

17

professional can have.

18

people to go ahead and finish, to get all

19

paperwork done, which is what they agreed to do at

20

the front end of the -- of -- of taking on this

21

process.

22

people.

23

single-family homes.

24
25

CHAIR MOLINA:

I -- I think that we don't know right

It's -- it's possible as Ralph mentioned

In part because we want
get the

But it is still being used by a few
And remember that this is a process for

Okay.

Thank you, Mr. Director.

Mr. Nagamine, do you have any comments?
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MR. NAGAMINE:

No, I -- I think that the Director had

2

explained it relatively well.

3

want to kind of emphasize is that it is the election

4

of the applicant to decide if they wanted to take

5

that risk and do the plan review waiver.

6

kind of like a business decision for the applicant

7

whether they want to take that risk.

8
9

10
11

CHAIR MOLINA:

The only comment I do

So it's

Thank you, Mr. Nagamine.
committee Members, questions for either

Mr. Coloma-Agaran or Mr. Nagamine?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Member Hokama?

I think we heard earlier from

12

Ms. Duensing that I -- I guess the professional that

13

was involved in this situation left -- left the

14

state and therefore weren't unable to I -- I guess

15

one is to notify the state licensing board.

16

your understanding as our department professionals

17

that to practice even as an architect you must be

18

licensed in the State of Hawaii to do business?

19

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Is it

The -- the way the process works,

20

well, first, to answer your actual question, the

21

state of Hawaii does require architects to be

22

licensed.

23

process, you need to be a Hawaii licensee to be able

24

to participate in the plan review waiver process.

25

We do have a licensing board.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

For our

Did we forward this professional's
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1

name to the state licensing board about our issue

2

that we have and that we would recommend denial of

3

his or -- or removal of his ability to practice in

4

Hawaii?

5

MR. NAGAMINE:

Yeah, I -- I believe the -- the rules that

6

we adopted stated that we would notify the licensing

7

board if there was a notice of violation issued.

8

And in this particular case, we did not issue a

9

notice of violation simply because of the fact that

10

they -- they were issued a building permit, they

11

signed a non-occupancy agreement, and in the process

12

of trying to gain that authorization to occupy, they

13

ran into this roadblock with the Planning

14

Department.

15

no violation.

16

And so they didn't occupy, so there was

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

And I can -- and I can appreciate

17

that, Mr. Nagamine.

But as I understand our 106.4

18

portion of the code, when we look at it,

19

particularly section 4(d), it says that the building

20

official, and I -- I believe that would be

21

Mr. Agaran as our director, may issue the permit for

22

the construction of part of a building or structure

23

before the entire plans and specifications for the

24

whole building or structure have been submitted or

25

approved, provided adequate information and detailed
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1

statements have been filed complying with all

2

pertinent requirements of this code.

3

that professional didn't meet all pertinent

4

requirements of our code.

5

MR. NAGAMINE:

Yeah.

So obviously,

Historically that provision has been

6

used to issue foundation permits, what we

7

generically call foundation permits.

8

allow a -- an applicant that has come in for, for

9

example, they want to build a new commercial

And this would

10

building and they realize that the commercial

11

building maybe there's some paperwork that's going

12

to take some time such as like having to record some

13

agreements that need to go with the bureau and --

14

and they already know that that recordation process

15

is going to take maybe a month, but let's say that

16

the nuts and bolts of the project in terms of the

17

code compliance is already in place but they're just

18

waiting for some paperwork to run its course, they

19

may elect to go ahead and seek a foundation permit

20

which would let them go ahead and do the work

21

necessary to -- to do the foundation work.

22

the meantime, while the paperwork is running its

23

course, they will hopefully in the meantime get

24

their building permit to finish the remainder of the

25

structure.
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When we issue a foundation permit, that gives

1

2

notice that they are at risk that their plans

3

something may happen and they may not get the

4

building permit for the entire structure.

5

that's again another business decision that they

6

decide that they want to go ahead and start work on

7

the foundations.

8

used for that purpose.

9
10

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

But

So that provision of the code is

Okay.

And -- and I appreciate

that, Mr. Nagamine.
But, Chair, the code also says that the

11

12

permit holder shall proceed at the permit holder's

13

risk.

14

MR. NAGAMINE:

Yeah, let me make one more clarification.

15

And generally the foundation permits are not a plan

16

review waiver permit.

17

system permit.

18

plan review waiver, they would just go for the whole

19

kit and caboodle and do the whole structure.

20

CHAIR MOLINA:

21

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

22

They're generally a regular

Because if they are going to do the

Member Hokama?
But they still receive a permit,

right, Mr. Nagamine?

23

CHAIR MOLINA:

Mr. Nagamine?

24

MR. NAGAMINE:

Yeah.

25

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Thank you.

Thank you, Chairman.
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CHAIR MOLINA:

Committee Members, any questions for the

2

3
4

Thank you, Member Hokama.

Department?

Member Kane?

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

So Mr. Coloma-Agaran, in your comments of the

5
6

February 20th, '04 response letter to the Chair, if

7

the Planning Department identifies the historic

8

district properties within KIVA, the Countywide

9

permit tracking software, do we have to amend the

10

language within the existing proposal that we have

11

to accommodate that -- that condition?
And the answer would be I would think no, but

12
13

how can we make sure that gets accomplished if

14

that's what the intent of this bill is?

15

just asking, is there any type of language necessary

16

to -- to get that accomplished, that -- that that's

17

going to be done and so there is a directive

18

somewhere that the Planning Department has a flag?

19

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

And so I'm

I -- Mr. Chair, I would hope that if

20

the Council makes it apparent that that's your --

21

that's your intent in creating this exemption

22

exception, that the Planning Department will

23

undertake that.

24

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

25

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you, Chair.
Thank you, Member Kane.
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questions for the Department at this time?
okay.

3

The Chair has one question for the

4

Director.

I'd like to get your comments on this

5

question, Mr. Director.

6

to certify inspections, would that be a case of like

7

asking the fox to guide the proverbial hen house?

8

And I

9

asked by some.

If architects are allowed

I ask that question because that's been

10

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

11

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Mr. Nagamine or Mr. Coloma-Agaran?
Jan-ken-po.
Again, it's, I think, more a balance

12

in the policy that was undertaken by the Council is

13

really what's

14

putting at risk.

15

at risk is their license and any liability insurance

16

that they have because really the -- the client

17

would be looking towards them to fullfil the

18

requirements of the ordinance.

19

are signing off that they are going to go through

20

the entire process and that what

21

will comply with what the County would have -- would

22

have required.

23

what -- what is the professional
What the professional is putting

They're the ones who

what they design

So really, it depends on whether you think

24

that that's enough of a balance that they will try

25

to do their best.

I think you expect that -- that
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1

the -- one of the assumptions of professional

2

licensing is that when someone has a license, that

3

they are going to fulfill the requirements of their

4

profession and that they're putting at risk their

5

license when -- when they fail.

6

primary relationship is really fulfilling what their

7

client wants to do.

8

professions, it also includes that they are going to

9

be responsible for the health and safety of the

10

11
12

CHAIR MOLINA:

So I guess it would be safe to assume the

risk is greater for the architect in this matter.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

14

Chairman.

16

17

But in -- in certain

public that's being served generally.

13

15

And their -- their

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Unless he leaves the state,

Yeah, unless the license is not that

important to the professional.
CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you, Mr. Director.

And I ask this -- this next question I have,

18
19

I ask the same question of Ms. Duensing from the

20

Planning Department.

21

review process, how would you improve the current

22

system as you see it right now?

23
24
25

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Aside from repealing the plan

You're speaking specifically about the

plan review process.
CHAIR MOLINA:

Right.

You know, leaving the plan review
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1

process in place rather than say repealing it, is

2

there a way to improve it and address some of these

3

concerns?

4

having the Planning Department, I guess, red flag

5

any potential concerns, but is -- is there anything

6

else that -- any other types of improvements that

7

you can see to help better improve this process?

8

The existing one, I should say.

9

MR. NAGAMINE:

I think you mentioned the -- the --

Well, like all things, the more information

10

you put into KIVA, the more it's going to help

11

everybody.

12

towards that end in this regard.

13

you do pass this bill, it would definitely send a

14

signal to the Planning Department as a priority they

15

need to flag out the historic district properties.

16

But in general, generally speaking, I think

17

all the County's -- all the departments within the

18

County are using KIVA more and more and they're

19

putting more information into KIVA.

20

KIVA is becoming more effective.

21
22

23

CHAIR MOLINA:

And I think that the County is working

Okay.

But, you know, if

So fortunately

Thank you, Mr. Nagamine.

Member Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

This -- you know, to me one of the

24

simplest things is on the -- if the applicant

25

chooses to use the plan review waiver process,
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1

Mr. Nagamine, then why wouldn't we just add two

2

blocks on that if it's -- it's -- if it's a paper

3

form, one, ask

4

within a historic district, yes or no.

the question would be, are you

You know, because a lot of times I see us

5

6

trying to do what I consider is the individual or

7

the business's responsibility to provide, and let

8

them sign off and say I verify these statements to

9

be true or accurate and that they can be held

10

11

responsible for those answers.
MR. NAGAMINE:

Yeah, I think that the -- part of the

12

problem is that if you have an applicant, let's say

13

that he comes down to my office and has to wait 30

14

minutes, an hour, whatever.

15

permit clerk to apply.

16

are you within the historic district.

17

know.

18

Okay.

They come into the

We then pose the question
They don't

So then we say, well, go up to

19

Planning and go find out.

Okay.

They go up to

20

Planning, wait another half hour, hour or whatever

21

to get an answer, and then come back and then have

22

to wait in line again.

23

mean, it'll work if we do it manually, but it will

24

just cause a lot of frustration for the applicant to

25

have to go bouncing back and forth between Public

So I think that, yeah, I
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Works and Planning.
What we're suggesting is for

2

3
4

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

applicant is using a professional --

5

MR. NAGAMINE:

6

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

7

But, Mr. Nagamine, if the -- if the

Right.
-- licensed engineer, licensed

architect --

8

MR. NAGAMINE:

Right.

9

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

-- they're paying this professional

10

to do all that responsible legwork, due diligence on

11

behalf of their -- their

~2

MR. NAGAMINE:

Well -- well --

13

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

14

MR. NAGAMINE:

-- developer or property owner.

-- the -- the professional will certify,

15

but oftentimes it's the applicant that will come in,

16

not -- not the professional but maybe the -- the

17

project owner, the developer.

18

although the applicant should check prior to

19

submitting, maybe they assume that it's not in and

20

out and give us the wrong answer.

21
22

23

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

It may be that the

I don't feel to do the individual's

work from the County.
MR. NAGAMINE:

Yeah.

Well, what we're suggesting is the

24

seal proof way, the safe

25

Planning to just tell us if the project is in and

the safest way is for
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out.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Either that or you know what might

3

be easier as we do with other county projects, if

4

they want to go and do a plan review waiver and

5

you're willing to take the risk, then put up a --

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Bond.

7

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

-- faithful performance bond.

And

8

if you are in violation, we're going to utilize the

9

bond to make the appropriate corrections to be in

10

11
12

13

compliance with the law.
CHAIR MOLINA:

Mr. Nagamine, any response to Mr. Hokama's

comments or Mr. Coloma-Agaran?
MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Well, I mean, there are a lot of

14

options.

I guess, again, one of the things though

15

the County is always interested in doing is not

16

necessarily making it easier for us, but also making

17

it easy for our customers.

18

the people we live with.

19

community.

20

service.

I mean, these people are
They're part of our

When they come in, they do want some

21

And so if we can make it easier for

22

everybody, both my staff, the Planning staff, and

23

the customers, if it's in our computer system, I

24

mean, that's the whole purpose behind technology is

25

to have the information right there, then, you know,
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that's -- then we can take them through the system.

2

And I -- so I -- I still think that -- I

3

understand what

4

is getting at.

5

for everyone, I think that's as good a solution as

6

anything where -- where you hold some kind of club

7

over someone's head on this.

8

are -- there are a lot of things that we can look at

9

to make -- see if we can make this work better.

10

CHAIR MOLINA:

11

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

12

CHAIR MOLINA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

what Councilmember Hokama is
But if there is a way to expedite it

But, you know, those

Mr. Hokama?

Okay.

Okay.
Thank you.
Yes.

Member Johnson?

with regard to the actual

14

process of allowing the person to occupy the

15

property when the plumbing inspectors or the

16

electrical -- electrical inspectors go out or any of

17

the other people that are looking at these things

18

once, you know, the whole building has been

19

completed, don't they generally just see the things

20

from the outside because all the work has been done?

21

How can the inspector know what's underneath a

22

foundation?

23

conduit is done properly?

24

that?

25

MR. NAGAMINE:

How do they know if an electrical
How do you gauge for

Well, for new construction there are
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1

required inspections, and some of the required

2

inspections need to be done prior to it being

3

covered, okay?

4

that the contractor will call us when they're ready

5

for the inspection, and so they will call us before

6

they cover, before they bury.

7

And generally the way we operate is

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And so what if they don't under

8

plan review waiver, I mean, all these other things

9

are --

10

MR. NAGAMINE:

11

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

12

The waiver does not excuse inspections.
Okay.

So they still have to have

it inspected --

13

MR. NAGAMINE:

They still need to do the inspections.

14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

So from what I'm hearing from

15

other people, they have to wait sometimes quite a

16

period of time before the inspector is sometimes

17

able to get out there.

18

MR. NAGAMINE:

Yeah, well --

19

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

20

MR. NAGAMINE:

So--

Well, let me back up just a little bit.

In

21

regards to inspections, the building code, the

22

electrical code, and the plumbing code have required

23

inspections.

24

permit, there are certain building inspections that

25

need to be done and certain electrical inspections

When you take out a permit, a building
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that need to be done and certain plumbing

2

inspections that need to be done.
Conversely, when you take out a building

3

4

permit, there are no required planning inspections.

5

So a planning inspector may not necessarily go to a

6

project unless there's a complaint against the

7

project, okay.
So when our inspectors go out, they're

8
9

checking for building code compliance, okay?

And

10

I'm not too sure about how the fire inspectors work.

11

I -- my understanding is that they do in-progress

12

inspections, but I'm not sure at what points of the

13

construction they go out and inspect.

14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

So then essentially the plan

15

review waiver process -- I guess I'm having a hard

16

time understanding how it really helps if they have

17

all of these other things

18

MR. NAGAMINE:

The -- the plan review waiver process does

19

not really affect inspections because if you were to

20

issue a building permit regular system, the planning

21

inspectors mayor may not go out to inspect the

22

project.

23

the planning inspector mayor may not go out to

24

visit the project.

25

A plan review building permit, same thing,

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

There's no difference.

What -- what the plan review waiver
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1

process does is it shortens the time when the

2

building permit is issued so someone can actually

3

get in the ground and start their project.

4
5

6

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And about what amount of time

would it save if there are no problems?
MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Anywhere from two to six months,

7

depending.

I think right now I don't know where

8

Planning and water are in terms of the delays that

9

they have right now in looking at projects that are

10

pending, but I -- I think a few weeks ago Planning

11

was still looking at building permits that were

12

submitted for review for February or March.

13

we're now in the -- we're in June now.

14

those would have been pending already for three

15

months or so.

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

And

So it's

So -- so it -- it mayor it

17

may not shorten the time depending on how smoothly

18

the process goes.

19

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

with a plan review waiver, once they

20

certify -- once the professional certifies, we issue

21

a building permit.

22

of time by whatever

23

have taken to review that particular -- the

24

particular

25

includes, you know, all the agencies looking at it

So it -- it reduces the amount
however long it usually would

particular project.

And that
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that need to look at it for a building permit.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Wouldn't it be easier though

3

because I -- I know this has been done in other

4

areas where you actually have all the various

5

departments in one room and you've got a group of

6

people that are applying for building permits or

7

whatever it is and they sit down and you actually

8

have like a conference where you've got several

9

department heads or staff members there, isn't that

10

another way that you could approach it to actually

11

expedite the process and still give all the guidance

12

that you need to give?

13

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

That -- that can work provided that

14

each agency define specifically which -- which types

15

of projects are going to be really easy that they

16

can just sign off on.

17

example, I think the City has a process where they

18

can turn that around like I think they -- where they

19

have all the -- all the reviewing agencies all at

20

one place.

21

it's projects that are not in the SMA area, projects

22

that, well, in some instances, certain size

23

single-family homes and the like.

24
25

It's

I think in the -- for

But generally what that means, usually

it's possible that the County, and

this is one of the things that we've been looking
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1

at, can really ask each of the agencies do you

2

really want to look at these projects or not.

3

Because it's really a matter

4

matter of everyone being in one room.

5

of whether or not they're looking -- whether they

6

really need to look at all of these proposals or

7

not.

8
9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Well, in

it's -- it's not a
It's a matter

in -- you know,

because I don't do your job, it's hard for me to

10

say, but I would think that particularly for

11

single-family homes under a certain size, not in the

12

shoreline management area, particularly for small

13

families, if there was some way that we could at

14

least move them up in terms of getting into their

15

homes, whatever, and -- and particularly when they

16

don't have controversial things going on.

17

I think it would make it a little bit easier

18

if there was some means that they could apply

19

underneath a different, you know, category and say,

20

well, okay, if you have a checkoff list as

21

Mr. Hokama had said with, you know, I'm not in a

22

historic district, have a checkoff list for all of

23

the things that, you know, would qualify you for

24

going through this alternative method and just make

25

that something that would be available -RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
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1

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

That--

2

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

3

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

-- to those individuals.

That actually is the plan review

4

waiver process.

That's -- plan review waiver is for

5

single-family homes.

6

lot of ways because of water issues.

7

that when someone and even in a single-family home

8

wants to hook up to the county water system, there

9

is a review there.

We -- Maui is a challenge in a
So we know

DWS though has been saying on

10

first construction when they already have a meter,

11

they haven't been looking at -- at those projects.

12

So the county has been looking at ways to

13

make sure that the individual landowners who want to

14

build their first home or want to build their home

15

can get through the process a lot faster.

16

are looking at that.

17

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

We -- we

Well, you know, and -- and correct

18

me if I'm wrong, but most of the people that I've

19

been seeing who have been using the plan review

20

waiver process are the people that have the

21

financial wherewithal to hire all these -- these

22

professionals.

23

little family home that should go through the plan

24

review waiver process or is that not true?

25

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

So generally it's not a small,

I don't know because we -- I don't
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1

think -- I don't think we're keeping track of who

2

uses it other than which architects have ten

3

outstanding.

4

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Well, I would be interested to

5

find that out because if it is, you know, in that

6

category, then, you know, I think it's -- it's more

7

than likely that they do have the financial

8

wherewithal as Mr. Hokama said to be able to have

9

these professionals certify, you know, that all

10

these things are being done and the onus should now

11

be on us.
And -- and maybe this question would be to

12
13

Corp Counsel when that's appropriate, but I just

14

wanted to find out about liability or a hold

15

harmless clause that if they use this process, they

16

can't litigate against the County.

17

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you, Member Johnson.

Members, it's 10:30.

18

At this time the Chair

19

would like to give you all an opportunity to address

20

your personal needs, and when we return we will

21

continue our line of questioning and the Chair will

22

then give a recommendation on this item.

23

recess till 10:45.

(Gavel.)

10:32 a.m.

24

RECESS:

25

RECONVENE:

10:48 a.m.
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CHAIR MOLINA:

(Gavel.)

Public works and Traffic

2

Committee meeting for June 3rd is now back in

3

session.

4

continue the line of questioning for our resource

5

personnel.

At this time the Chair would like to

Committee Members, any questions?

I believe when we left off, Member Johnson

6
7

had a question.

S

Chair will start with Member Johnson.

9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

So if there are no objections, the

The -- the one thing during the

10

break, I also had a chance to go over some other

11

additional information.

12

that I have is under HRS 6E review, should we also

13

if only the partial repeal is going to be made,

14

should we also or could we also include those

15

properties under Chapter 6E review?

16

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

And one of the questions

Mr. Chair, maybe if Dawn Duensing can

17

come up here and -- and speak to that.

lS

that there are certain historic properties that are

19

listed in 6E which is the Historic Preservation

20

Division's statute.

21

means all 50-year-old structures though.

22

MS. DUENSING:

I believe

I don't think it necessarily

Chapter 6E-42 of the Hawaii Revised

23

statutes says that the state Historic Preservation

24

Division shall have an opportunity to review

25

anything that may potentially impact the historic
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structure, which is generally determined or the

2

determination is generally a building or resource 50

3

years or older is considered potentially historic.

4

And they would look at that in any case

5

because the -- the Planning Department or when

6

they have the opportunity to look at all of those

7

that might potentially affect the historic

8

structure.

9

because SHPD looks at it or they should be.

10

So I think that's already covered

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And

and that's my question,

11

Dawn, because underneath the plan review waiver

12

process I'm not sure if somebody was going to do

13

work and it did include any kind of structures that

14

would be covered under that section of HRS.

15

just don't know if -- you know, what the process

16

would be if they would have to certify that they had

17

no structures that were, you know, falling in that

18

category or whatever but at least to flag it so that

19

it could then be checked.

20

MS. DUENSING:

I

Well, I think what we do now is that all of

21

the buildings older than 50 years old are flagged

22

and they go to SHPD for review because the County

23

here doesn't have the authority but the state

24

Historic Preservation Division does.

25

I

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

So you're saying that would --
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1

they would never be permitted then to use plan

2

review waiver on any of these properties?

3

MS. DUENSING:

They shouldn't be

4

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

5

MS. DUENSING:

And--

-- because that would be a potential impact

6

to a historic structure.

7

that by saying that SHPD should have the opportunity

8

to review any potential impacts.

9

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

And then 6E-42 addresses

Generally, and I think that Corp

10

Counsel can speak to this, but a County ordinance

11

really couldn't limit the effect of a state statute

12

and 6E-42 is a state statute.

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Right, and -- and that -- that was

14

one of the reasons why I asked the question because

15

I wasn't sure if there could be some way that that

16

could be circumvented or if it ever has been

17

circumvented.

18

MS. DUENSING:

Right now what we're trying to do is speed

19

up the demolition building permit process and we

20

were trying to do that.

21

the State law is written, it still has to go to them

22

for review even if we have something to do with it.

23

If we would review it, then we would still send it

24

to them.

25

But even with that the way

So I don't think we can get out of that

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

So, you know, and -- and if
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1

it is already covered in the law that plan review

2

waiver is prohibited to be used, and I'm assuming,

3

you know, because I don't know what the law states,

4

but that if in these particular situations they

5

could not use the plan review waiver process, if

6

that's already stipulated, then, you know, that's

7

fine.

8
9

But I just didn't think it said that.

MS. DUENSING:

It's not -- it's not specifically stated.

But I think if the rules worked properly, when the

10

building permit was applied for they would see that

11

it's a building older than 50 years and it would

12

just go to SHPD.

13

look at the plans.

14

It would be transmitted to them to

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Should and reality are often two

15

different things.

16

that question.

17
18

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

That's the way it should work.

But anyway, I just wanted to ask

Thank you.
Thank you, Member Johnson.

Committee Members, any other questions for

19

our resource personnel prior to the Chair making his

20

recommendation on this item?

21

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I

okay.

Member Johnson?

I did have a question of

22

Corporation Counsel and that is in cases where we

23

have, you know, a plan review waiver in place and

24

let's say there were to be a -- a repeal of at least

25

even a portion of this with regard to the historic
RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

PWT 6/03/04

80

1

district, when would that be able to take place or

2

would it affect people that currently have plan

3

review waivers in process or would you just have a

4

cutoff period or how would that be implemented?

5

Because some of the people may say they have vesting

6

-- because they're already in the midst of this

7

process.

8
9

MR. NAGAMINE:

You're talking about if this bill were to

be adopted?

10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

11

MR. NAGAMINE:

Yes.

It would only affect the issuance of a plan

12

review waiver.

13

those that already have been issued.

14

the effective date of this bill, we would be

15

prohibited -- prohibited from issuing plan review

16

waiver permits for historic district properties.

17

And so I -- I don't think there would be any of

18

those kind of issues.

19

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

So it wouldn't necessarily affect
You know, on

Yeah, unless the bill is amended to

20

specifically retroactively apply to a certain date,

21

then it shouldn't affect any -- any permits that are

22

outstanding at the moment.

23

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

with regard to

24

Councilmember Hokama's question earlier about

25

posting a bond, is that also a possibility to
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1

include in this legislation as well as perhaps some

2

kind of a clause, and I don't know if it's currently

3

in the plan review waiver, that when someone using

4

this process, that they cannot turn around because

5

they failed in the process and then litigate against

6

the County for enforcement?

7

MR. NAGAMINE:

You know, the -- the concept of requiring a

8

bond is -- is very interesting.

However, in the 10

9

years -- in the 10 plus years that we've been using

10

the plan review waiver, I don't recall a situation

11

where the County has had to go in there to correct

12

something, okay?

13

rely upon a bond to actually go back and demolish or

14

reconstruct something.

In other words, we would have to

So even if you did the bond requirement,

15
16

okay, let's say they put up an "X" amount of bond,

17

there would be some administrative effort in

18

collecting the bond, storing the bond, returning the

19

bond.

20

to

21
22

23

And I'm not so certain that it'd be worth it
to do that since how we've never had to

a situation where we've had to need money to fix
somebody else's project.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

If -- and again, correct me if I'm

24

wrong, but I think on the Cameron residence on

25

Poolenalena, there were problems with that residence
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1

and I believe that they did use the plan review

2

waiver.

3

MR. NAGAMINE:

Yeah, but I'm not so certain the County

4

need to expend its funds to go ahead and do the

5

corrections.

6

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I know because there weren't

7

there were very few corrections done, I think

8

something to the landscaping, and they were minor.

9

But all of the other violations, the pool stayed in,

10

the encroachments, all the other damage was already

11

done.

12

MR. NAGAMINE:

Yeah.

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And I think they paid a fine.

But

14

in this particular situation, it was to the public's

15

detriment.

16

doing these kinds of things, it's just the cost of

17

doing business.

18

fine.

19

something of more substance that was there that

20

would at least prevent them from doing these kinds

21

of things and really being to the detriment of the

22

public, we wouldn't be having these encroachments

23

and these problems.

24
25

So I mean, to me the people that are

So you pay a little administrative

And to me if there was a bond, if there was

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

But, councilmember, just remember that

a bond is not a penalty.

A bond is a -- is a remedy
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for the County to make the corrections.

2

operate as a penalty.

3

saying is the fine should be larger for these types

4

of violations, then we should be talking about

5

increasing the fines and not -- not imposing a bond

6

necessarily.

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

It doesn't

So it's -- if what you're

No, but what I'm -- what I'm

8

saying and what -- if I understood Mr. Hokama

9

correctly, basically when you're posting a bond it

10

should be for the full value of your property so

11

that if it comes down, if you have to take it down

12

because you erred, the public should not suffer for

13

that.
So it would be demolition in some cases of a

14
15

portion of the property that was causing the

16

encroachment so we would be -- I don't care if it's,

17

you know, our bulldozers or somebody else's

18

bulldozers, but, you know, to me that if you are

19

putting that at risk, then you know that you have to

20

comply.

21

MR. NAGAMINE:

You know, I think that if we had a problem

22

with people initiating plan review waiver projects

23

and somehow abandoning them because of, let's say,

24

design issues, then I could see a need for a bond.

25

But in most cases when people have encountered
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1

problems, the applicant has gone through the system

2

to try to correct the problems and completed their

3

project.

4

to remove or to correct a problem.

5

ultimately will take the steps necessary to make the

6

project right.

So it's not like the county needs a bond
The applicant

In regards to penalties, yeah, we do collect

7
8

fines for plan review projects.

The most common

9

violation is people occupying prematurely.

In other

10

words, they would occupy the structure prior to

11

getting a release from the Department.

12

cases, we do collect a fine for them, for those type

13

of cases.

14

and we do collect on the penalties.

15

And in those

So, yeah, there -- there are penalties

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And -- and in a case -- you know,

16

I can think of one very good case where, you know,

17

the County is being litigated against because a

18

particular individual used the plan review waiver.

19

I just think of the money that that has cost us in

20

just that one case, and I look at that and I say is

21

it really worth it to the public.

22

funds.

23

benefiting, who is utilizing it, how often is it

24

used, and is it really -- do the benefits outweigh

25

the risks on the downside of liability.

These are public

So I have a concern about who is it really
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And, you know, just in one case alone I can

1

2

say that, you know, I'm not sure if we could have

3

hired a whole bunch of people to help process, you

4

know, applications.

5

would have been able to do that, but we didn't, you

6

know, have that opportunity in this case.

It would have been great if we

7

But those are all my comments, Mr. Chair, and

8

I thank you for, you know, allowing me to make them.

9
10

11
12

CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you, Member Johnson.
Committee Members, any final questions or

comments for our resource personnel?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Member Kane?

Yeah, just a final point and just for

13

clarification and

and going off of Member

14

Johnson's line of questioning.

15

the January 12th cover letter from Mr. Foley

16

describing the situation in Lahaina, the, you know,

17

the person was turned down, they came back, the --

18

it was passed through with marginal conformance.

So as an example on

19

So in this example, this particular one that

20

they're providing and we're talking about the bond,

21

if the bond were there to correct the problem

22

because it seems like the decision was made and was

23

stated on the record by Ms. Duensing that the reason

24

why they made that -- they -- they provided the

25

exemption was because there was a -- it was an
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1

emotional decision that they made because of the

2

significant expense.

3

So would the bond in this case would have

4

said you know what, the bond is there to correct

5

this thing and so they would have taken down the

6

whole A-frame house and it would have made them

7

start from scratch, but the bond would have covered

8

that and wouldn't have forced us as a County into

9

this sympathetic decision-making and -- and hence

10

not having this situation occur.

11

clarity, I'm just asking if that would have worked.

12

MR. NAGAMINE:

And just for

I -- I think it'd be a pretty tough

13

decision.

14

let's say there's some kind of a nonconformity, it'd

15

be a tough decision as to whether or not you're

16

going to calIon the bond to remove the -- the

17

structure or give the applicant an opportunity to

18

correct the discrepancy.

19

approach would be give the applicant an opportunity

20

to correct the

21

what happened in this case.

22
23

You know, if you were to have a bond and

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I'm thinking the logical

the deficiency and that's exactly
50--

The bond didn't make the difference

because ultimately the board made a decision --

24

MR. NAGAMINE:

To--

25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

-- to allow the --

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

PWT 6/03/04

87

1

MR. NAGAMINE:

Yeah.

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

3

MR. NAGAMINE:

-- the marginal approval.

Yeah, I think -- I think a bond would come

4

into play had the CRe denied the project for

5

whatever reason.

6

revisions, they denied the application, and we then

7

told the applicant that the structure had to be

8

either removed or -- or undone, the applicant

9

refused to, we would have to take him to court.

Even after they made all the

And

10

if the court ruled in our favor, then we would have

11

the bond to do the work.

12
13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
worked then.

14

MR. NAGAMINE:

15

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

16

MR. NAGAMINE:

17

Yeah, yeah.
Okay.

But -- but -- but it's -- it's not that

simple as you just

18

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

19

MR. NAGAMINE:

20

So in this case the bond would have

No, no, no.

Yeah, I mean, there's -- there's a process

that needs to occur.

21

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

22

MR. NAGAMINE:

23

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

24

MR. NAGAMINE:

25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Court proceeding

Right, right.
you know, making a decision --

Right.
and then we having something to --
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1

MR. NAGAMINE:

Yeah, yeah.

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

3

MR. NAGAMINE:

-- fall back on to correct it.

That's -- that's correct.

But the point

4

I'm trying to make is that in the 12 years that

5

we've had the plan review waiver, we've never had

6

that situation.

7

of administrative effort that would be needed to

8

collect the bond, keep track of it and return it.

9
10

11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

And my concern would be the amount

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you for that

clarification.
CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you, Member Kane.

committee Members, any final questions for
13

our resource personnel prior to the Chair'S

14

recommendation?

15

Chairman --

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

17

CHAIR MOLINA:

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

19

CHAIR MOLINA:

20

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

Seeing none, your

Mr. Chair?

Oh, I'm sorry.
I just

Member Johnson, go ahead.
You know, because of this one

21

final area, if professional liability coverage is

22

required basically by the architect or whoever's

23

running through on this, if they are required to

24

have this professional liability coverage in effect

25

in order to use the plan review waiver, would that
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also be an option?
Because many times the person who's building

2

3

the home wouldn't necessarily be angry with the

4

county.

5

the responsible party because the architect did

6

something wrong.

7

have that type of coverage in order for them to be

8

authorized, wouldn't that be an additional

9

protection for the County?

10

MR. NAGAMINE:

They would be angry or they would look at

So if the architect is required to

Most professionals, signing professionals,

11

do have some liability coverage, okay?

12

know, if you're going to make that a requirement for

13

plan review waivers, then you would have to dictate

14

the amounts that would be necessary, you know, what

15

kind of coverage that person would need to have.

16

And I guess at the time that they apply for a plan

17

review waiver, they would need to provide proof that

18

they have that amount of coverage.

19

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And

But you

and I -- a simple way of

20

looking at it would be that you would have to have

21

coverage sufficient to basically redo or to pay for

22

the potential damages that could result from the

23

property that you were actually moving through the

24

plan review waiver process.

25

MR. NAGAMINE:

Yeah.

I -- I think rather than have it
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1

subject on a case-by-case basis, it might be better

2

just to have a certain set amount of coverage that

3

they need.

4

projects that

5

125,000.

6

prices may vary on the -- the cost of the project.

Because again, we're talking about
commercial projects that are below

And on the residential side, you know, the

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

8

CHAIR MOLINA:

9

10

Okay.

Okay.

Committee Members, any last

questions for our resource personnel?
Hokama?

Member Kane?

11

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

12

CHAIR MOLINA:

13

Thank you.

Member Pontanilla?
No.

Member Tavares?
Okay.

Member

And Member Johnson.

At this point, Members, your Chair's

14

recommendation is -- well, I'll start first with the

15

second bill, the bill that's being proposed by

16

Member Johnson.

17

concerns that have been brought up with the bill.

18

At this point, the Chair would like to refrain from

19

acting on it today and in its place send a

20

correspondence to the Administration outlining the

21

recommendations and concerns from the Committee to

22

include that the Planning Department, I guess, red

23

flag any properties in the historic districts and

24

also to have the Public Works Department and the

25

Planning Department continue to give their input on

I think there's been many good
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1

how we can address this concern that has been

2

brought up as it relates to the planning review

3

waiver process.

4

Now the Chair had considered acting on the

5

first portion of this item, which is the proposed

6

bill from the Planning Director to, I guess, exclude

7

the plan review process from any property located

8

within a historic district.

9

comfortable to act on that portion of the item.

The Chair is
But

10

before I do so, I'd like to get feedback from the

11

Committee Members first as it relates to the whole

12

item in itself.

13

So, I guess, the Chair is looking for some

14

direction from the Committee.

15

would prefer to do.

16

any concerns or additional recommendations from the

17

Committee at this point before further acting.

18

guess we'll start first with Member Tavares.

19

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

I've stated what I

However, the Chair will honor

I

Yeah, it's the one attached to

20

it's the first item in the book, the one with the

21

January 12th --

22

CHAIR MOLINA:

23

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

24
25

From the Director, Planning Director.
From the Planning Director, that one

is the one you're talking about right now?
CHAIR MOLINA:

As far as for acting on, yes.
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VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Mr. Chairman, I would have no problem

2

supporting this bill and if we get into discussion I

3

would share my reasons for it.

4

just trying to get a feel for where we are, I would

5

be inclined to support the bill.

6
7
S
9

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you, Member Tavares.

Member Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

I'm inclined to support the

bill as it is right now.

10

CHAIR MOLINA:

11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

12

And so if you're

Okay.

Thank you.

Member Kane?

I can support your recommendation,

Chair.

13

CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you.

14

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Member Hokama?

Chairman, with all respect to you,

15

I would have liked to look at this as the last

16

option and that we might forward to members of the

17

cultural Resource Commission some of the other

1S

adjustments we could consider also.

19

have asked Ms. Duensing when she was here whether or

20

not the commission did consider other things than

21

just this option of deleting the historic district

22

portion.

23

Maybe I should

And again, what we have discussed early this

24

morning is we've looked at different chapters of the

25

code whereby it states the responsibilities of the
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1

commission, as well as we've been informed that for

2

various reasons the Department through its Director

3

of Planning had chosen not to forward to the

4

commissioners what the code requires them in

5

reviewing design plans and -- and adjustments in the

6

historic area.

7

hesitant to support the bill at this time.

8

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

So saying that, Chairman, I'd be

Thank you, Member Hokama.

At this point, Members, the Chair will

9
10

consider holding a vote on the first item of or the

11

first portion of Item No. 27.

Again, we will -- the

Chair will be conducting a vote on whether the plan
13

review process should be excluded from the historic

14

district just to make it clear to the Committee

15

Members.

16
17

Okay.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Member Tavares?
Yeah, Mr. Chairman, in light of what

18

Mr. Hokama has

19

inclined to -- to defer the item until we got some

20

further information from the CRC?

21
22

23

CHAIR MOLINA:

has shared with us, would you be

If that is the will of the majority of the

body, the Chair will honor that.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Because, you know, I -- I get a --

24

I'm thinking that regardless of what has happened in

25

the past, if the Planning Department or the Director
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1

was supposed to send all of these things to the CRC

2

and it didn't happen for some reason, this is like

3

the checks and balance if it's in the code that all

4

of these have to go to

5

waiver.

6

cannot use the plan review

You know, when I -- I read through quickly

7

that section I think you were talking about,

8

Mr. Hokama, and I

9

those things that were being considered for

I thought it pertained only to

10

designation.

So I didn't -- I didn't -- and I got

11

to read it again, I guess, because I thought it

12

it only pertained to those, not to any building or

13

renovation in a historic district.

14

clarification from Corp Counsel as to what that

15

section F, wasn't it --

16

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

17

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

So I would need

Yes, yes.
Yeah, to -- to have that.

But I -- I

18

don't mind waiting to get further information from

19

the CRC.

20

What I don't want to see happen through this

21

process is that an enormous amount of pressure is

22

put on the CRC because they have to say, I'm sorry,

23

you can't get a CO, you got to tear the thing down

24

and start over when people have spent hundreds and

25

thousands of dollars doing whatever, their
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renovation.

So to me the protection of the interest

2

of the public is doing it upfront.

3

upfront that these things have to be done, then that

4

saves them money in the long run.

And if they know

5

So even in cases where you're saving time

6

from two to four months, I mean, the two to four

7

months is nothing compared to a few hundred thousand

8

dollars worth of redoing something.

9

benefit for the community would be for us to

So to me the

or have a longer process in the

10

elongate the

11

front end so that they could save the dollars at the
back end.

13

14

And -- and that's where I feel that we

could best protect the community that way.
But I'm willing to wait to hear from what --

15

from the CRC as what other suggestions they may have

16

regarding it.

17

to put them in a position where they have to, you

18

know, really pound the hammer down on somebody when

19

you see good faith efforts, and I'm sure -- I'm not

20

sure, but I would suspect that's what happened when

21

this gentleman came in and had done some

22

corrections.

23

any A-frames in any historic district in Hawaii,

24

actually.

25

come in compliance, you practically have to tear the

But they are a volunteer board, and

But, you know, I don't remember seeing

So it would be like if you're going to
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thing down.

2

You know, the Hawaiian huts had the "A" --

3

the "A" part of the roof but not the -- they went

4

the whole thing.

5

be willing to wait, Mr. Chairman, if -- if that were

6

your -- your wish to -- to support what Mr. Hokama

7

had said.

8

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

But, yeah, I -- I would -- I would

Thank you, Member Tavares.

And the

9

Chair also agrees, I don't want to see any A-frames

10

in our historic districts or anything that's out of

11

line.
Member Pontanilla, any comments?

12
13

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

No comments other than I'll be

14

supporting your recommendation and, you know, what

15

Riki Hokama brings up is a very good suggestion.

16

CHAIR MOLINA:

17

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

18

Okay.

And Member Kane?
Chair, I will support your

recommendation, Chair.

19

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

20

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

21

CHAIR MOLINA:

22

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

All right.

Thank you.

Chairman?

Member Hokama?
And again, I can appreciate all the

23

Members' comments, including Ms. Johnson's.

24

thing that I think Mr. Moto has always asked us is

25

to read the whole paragraph or the whole thing in
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1

its entirety.

And -- and -- and that's why I

2

brought up that section to my fellow committee

3

Members is that if you look

4

is not how I've interpreted it and of course not

5

being a professional lawyer.

6

know, we -- we've been instructed to write laws so

7

that anyone can have a basic understanding of our

8

laws.

read all of F, that

But I think our -- you

Plus also, Mr. Chairman, I think we might

9
10

also under your signature if you would on behalf of

11

the Committee write to corporation Counsel for

12

clarification on that portion of the Code 2.88.

13

while I agree that we want -- don't want to do undue

14

burdens on our commissioners also, it is one of the

15

few commissions that the code requires professional

16

disciplines, which also includes architecture.

And

And -- and I just bring that up because our

17
18

-- you know, we have volunteers, Chairman.

We have

19

a wonderful group of people who provide this service

20

to us because of their interest to protect what is

21

important within these historic district areas.

22

so I

23

time to insure that we allow the Resource Commission

24

another opportunity to comment, as well as get

25

opinions from Corporation Counsel.

And

I just -- I would rather take a little more

And maybe the
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1

Planning Director might also want to give his

2

comments also why the practice is the way it is

3

currently.

4
5

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you, Member Hokama.

final comments?

6

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

7

CHAIR MOLINA:

No.

Any other

Member Johnson.
No.

Okay.

Well, to use, I guess, a cliche

8

from watching the NFL football season when the

9

referees always say, upon further review, the Chair

10

will take into consideration some of the concerns

11

that have been expressed by the Members.

12

you all to make a decision that -- a fully informed

13

one and I will honor that.

I do want

14

So with that being said, the Chair will defer

15

from making a -- having a decision made on the first

16

portion of Item No. 27 which deals with excluding

17

the planning review process from property located in

18

a historic district.

19

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

20

CHAIR MOLINA:

The Chair will

Chairman, Chairman.

-- await more comments from the Cultural

21

Resources Commission and, I guess, any other

22

recommendations that have been made by the Committee

23

Members.

24

a correspondence to the administration with some of

25

the recommendations that have been made as well.

In addition, the Chair will still transmit
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So Member Hokama?

1

2

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

I would ask if you would also

3

consider and I -- just as a consideration, if we

4

should have a request for a comment from the state

5

Historic Preservation office also.

6

CHAIR MOLINA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

8

Chairman.

9

Okay.

CHAIR MOLINA:

SHPD.

State Historic -I just ask you to consider that,

Any other recommendations or

Okay.

10

feedback on this matter from other agencies?

11

Chair and Staff will also look into what other, I

12

guess, appropriate agencies should respond to this

13

matter.
Before I recognize Analyst Saldana, Member

14
15

16

The

Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I -- I just -- my question was

17

that from my understanding you're going to send a

18

transmittal to the Planning Department --

19

CHAIR MOLINA:

20

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

21

22
23

Public Works.
which would be then taken under

consideration by the Cultural Resources Commission?
CHAIR MOLINA:

If that is the appropriate manner, I

believe, yes.

24

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

25

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Okay, okay.
Thank you.

Thank you.

Mr. Saldana?
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MR. SALDANA:

Yeah, Mr. Chair, just in terms of

2

clarification, correspondence that is being

3

suggested for the State Historical Preservation

4

office, what exactly did you want us to ask them?

5

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

6

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Member Hokama?
I -- I would say one is compliance

7

to design guidelines, should there be a degree of

8

flexibility since part of the discussion was on the

9

marginal compliance of the

of the standards.

10

Because I think one of the reasons why we have the

11

standards was to insure the integrity of the

12

architecture we're trying to preserve.

13

would be, you know, a question that I would ask them

14

for their comment.

15

to respond at all, Chairman, but at least they had

16
17
18
19

And so that

And again, they may choose not

were given an opportunity to provide us with some
comments.
CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you.
Okay.

Thank you, Member Hokama.

Any other recommendations or comments on this

20

matter relating to Item 27?

Okay.

Well, the Chair

21

thanks you all for having a very good and thorough

22

discussion on this matter.

23

appreciates the fact that you did not -- the

24

majority of you did not want to move, and I honor

25

that because I know all of us do want to make

And again, the Chair
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1

decisions that are well-informed and we want to be

2

comfortable before taking a vote on anything.

3

always we have to keep in mind that decisions are

4

not driven by the Chair but by the body itself.
So if there are no objections, the Chair will

5

6

defer this item with the suggestions and

7

recommendations that have been made.

S

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

9

CHAIR MOLINA:

No objections.

Okay.

All right.

10

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

11

CHAIR MOLINA:

12

And

Thank you, Chairman.

Thank you very much, Members.

ACTION: Recommending DEFERRAL pending further
discussion.

13

ITEM NO. 28:

PROPOSED RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING MAUl
ELECTRIC COMPANY, LIMITED AND VERIZON
HAWAII, INC., TO REPLACE AND INSTALL
UTILITY POLES ON ULOMAU PLACE, HAIKU
(C.C. 04-127)

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

14
15
16
17

Let us go on to our next item of the

18

day which is Item No. 2S, which is the proposed

19

resolution authorizing Maui Electric Company,

20

Limited, and Verizon Hawaii, Inc., to replace and

21

install utility poles on Ulumau Place in Haiku.

22

And again, we have the Director from Public

23

Works Mr. Coloma-Agaran to give us an overview of

24

this matter.

25

our proceedings here today from Maui Electric

The Chair has also invited to attend
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1

company Mr. Eric

2

apologize, I had it here someplace.

3

MR. SALDANA:

4

CHAIR MOLINA:

5

I had your name here, I

Darin.
Darin Yamamoto, right.

And then we have

from Verizon the representative Lori

6

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

7

CHAIR MOLINA:

Sheri.

Sheri, okay.

Sorry, I don't know what

8

happened to that.

Here we go, Sheri Tihada.

9

given two different lists this morning.

Sheri

10

Tihada from verizon and Darin Yamamoto of Maui

11

Electric.

12

you have any questions for them today.

13

I was

So Committee Members, at your perusal, if

But first, at this time I'd like to ask the

14

Director from Public Works and Environmental

15

Management to give his overview of this matter.

16

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

This -- what's

17

before you is a resolution to authorize Maui

18

Electric Company to replace two poles, 30-feet pole

19

and a 35-foot pole and to install three new utility

20

poles of approximately 40 feet along Ulumalu Place

21

in Haiku.

22

I believe you had sent us a letter, and I

23

don't believe we've sent a written response yet

24

providing this information.

25

representatives from verizon and from Maui Electric

And I

I think the
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1

can -- can answer most of the questions that you did

2

-- that you did send us regarding what types of

3

poles and any impacts that the poles may have on the

4

views of neighboring properties.

5

take a look at the location and the -- and the plans

6

that were proposed and we did approve those

7

locations and plans.

S

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you, Mr. Director.

committee Members, any questions for the

9

10

Director at this time?

11

Member Johnson?

12

Our Department did

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

Any -- oh, okay,

Were there any comments from the

13

Haiku Community Association with regard to this

14

matter?

15
16

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

I'm not aware of any that were sent to

our Department.

17

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

lS

attention?

19

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

20

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Was this ever brought to their

I don't believe it has been.
Okay.

And the only reason I ask

21

that, Mr. Chair, is because so many times, you know,

22

it's really unfortunate but people, you know, they

23

just feel that, well, why wasn't I notified or they

24

have concerns after the fact because I know that

25

then it's too late.

So that would have been my only
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1

concern is has this gone before the Haiku community

2

Association.

3
4

5

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you, Member Johnson.

Member Tavares?
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

Yes.

Maybe we can ask the

6

representatives what kind of input they've had from

7

the community, the residences that will be served,

8

residents that will be served by this replacement

9

and new installation or any other comments that they

10
11

might have received.
CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

I guess we'll ask first Mr. Yamamoto

12

from Maui Electric if he can come on up and have a

13

seat and get comfy and to respond to questions from

14

the Committee.

15
16

MR. YAMAMOTO:

Good morning everybody.

Do you want me to

just address these questions in the letter --

17

CHAIR MOLINA:

Yeah.

Members, we're --

18

MR. YAMAMOTO:

or

19

CHAIR MOLINA:

addressing the May 13th correspondence

20

in the binder.

21

respond to those questions and anything else that

22

might come about.

23

MR. YAMAMOTO:

Okay.

So Mr. Yamamoto, if you could

The first one being the detailed map

24

that identifies the height and location of the

25

existing and proposed poles, especially in relation
RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

PWT 6/03/04

105

1

to the public right-of-way and neighboring

2

properties.

3

have one that shows in relation to the property --

4

the neighboring property lines.

We don't -- existing plan, we don't

Our concern was just the one pole.

5

If you

6

have a copy of the drawing, it's Pole No. E2-40 --

7

E2-4A for the new pole that will be installed in the

8

county right-of-way.

9

getting the permit for that.

That was our motivation for

The other two poles reside in private

10
11

property and the customer Daniel Gray is getting

12

is in the process of securing easements for those.

13

So if

14

know, to show the poles locations within -- you

15

know, as far as the boundaries of the properties

16

that can be addressed and revised, if that answers

17

that question.

18

if the drawing needs to be revised, you

Whether the new poles will impact the view of

19

neighboring properties, all I can say is that

20

according to the -- the design that we have done,

21

that we will also be removing two other existing

22

poles and also by doing that we'll be able to clean

23

up the existing overhead services to the neighboring

24

properties.

25

They will be taller poles, no doubt.

The customer that is requesting the power at
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1

the end of the lot on the drawing, it shows Tax Map

2

Key No. 2-5 -- I'm sorry, excuse me, 2-6-06:60,

3

because of the distance to serve that customer, we

4

would need to extend our primary lines.

5

almost the distance of -- a total of almost 4 --

6

almost 500 feet.

7

lines, extended -- extended secondary lines to that

8

property, then there would be both these loss

9

incurred on the customer's part that would not meet

That's

If we just installed secondary

10

PUC tariffs, as well as our own company's tariffs to

11

supply the customer with adequate power.

12

Item 3, whether the neighbors had been

13

advised of the proposed pole installations, I -- I

14

did mention to Mr. Gray that he would be having to

15

contact the neighbors that he needs to get the

16

easements from.

17

anything as far as letting all the customers along

18

Ulumau Place that this installation extension would

19

be -- is -- is being planned.

20

like a some were and some aren't.

21

that part is at.

22

Maui Electric has not initiated

So that's kind of
So that's where

Question number 4, whether the proposed poles

23

are wooden or steel.

They are 40-foot wooden poles

24

and they're buried 5 feet in the ground.

25

actually sticking out of the ground about 35 feet.
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The -- okay, the -- it's okay?

2

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

3

MR. YAMAMOTO:

(Inaudible.)

Whether the installation of utilities

4

underground in these locations have been

5

considered.

6

the cost to the customer and the considerable cost

7

on his end for extending primary lines underground,

8

the option for him to go overhead was a more cost

9

efficient option for him, I guess, so.

They were considered, but because of

10

And, oh, the

11

the purpose for the

12

replacement of the proposed poles, again, as stated,

13

was to provide that customer at the end of the road

14

with adequate voltage.

15

our primary lines and install a pole mount

16

transformer on the last pole.

17
18

19

20

CHAIR MOLINA:

the proposed -- I'm sorry,
for the installation and

So we would have to extend

That's E3-4A.

Thank you, Mr. Yamamoto.
Committee Members, any questions for the Maui

Electrical representative?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Member Kane?

Yeah, just for clarification because

21

we have the heights of the poles discussed and

22

Mr. Yamamoto just stated that although the pole

23

and I'll talk about the three new utility poles, 40

24

feet each along Ulumau Place in Haiku, installation

25

of three new utility poles.

But you're saying that
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1

the poles will actually be from the ground 35 feet

2

high because 5 foot -- 5 feet of it is going to be

3

underground?

4

MR. YAMAMOTO:

Yeah, correct.

It's -- yeah, it's actually

5

about almost 6 feet buried, but, yes, so about 34,

6

35 feet will be sticking out of the ground, correct.

7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

So the current replacement of the two

8

utility poles, when we -- when -- when we're looking

9

at -- and this is just information, Chair, so we

10

understand.

11

poles, the number that's given to us is not the

12

height but the actual length of the pole?

13

this case, we have two replacement poles, 30 and 35

14

feet respectively.

15

length of the pole or is that the height?

16

MR. YAMAMOTO:

When you -- when we reference the

So in

So I'm assuming is that the

That -- that's the entire height.

Yeah,

17

that's the entire height of the pole in its entirety

18

not sticking out of the ground.

19

the 30-foot pole would be sticking out of the ground

20

approximately 25 feet and the 35-footer would be 30

21

feet respectively.

22
23

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

So in other words,

Interesting.

Thank you.

something new today, Chair.

Thank you.

24

CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you, Member Kane.

25

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

That's

Member Hokama?

Another -- another clarification
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1

before you continue with the questioning.

2

says replace, it actually means that they're going

3

to be removing those two poles.

4

about installing three poles here.

5
6

7
8

9

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

When it

We're only talking

Mr. Chair, so let's get that clear

now.
CHAIR MOLINA:

All right.

Follow up on that

clarification, Member Kane?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

The resolution is to authorize the

10

replacement of two utility poles and the

11

installation of three new utility poles.

12

would draw that there's going to be five poles here.

13

Two -- two replaced poles from old to two new, plus

14

three more new.

15

we're actually looking at a total of three poles?

16

MR. YAMAMOTO:

So one

But what you're saying is that

That is correct.

We will be installing the

17

three poles and then in the process being able to

18

remove two poles to clean up the -- the area,

19

correct.

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

21

CHAIR MOLINA:

22

23

Okay.

Thank you very much.

Thank you for that clarification,

Mr. Director and Mr. Yamamoto.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Member Hokama?

I believe we just heard from the

24

utility representative that the individual

25

requesting the service will be required to contact
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1

the private property owners where the, I guess, the

2

utility easement is going to be running through, is

3

that correct?

4

MR. YAMAMOTO: Yes, sir.

5

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

6

7

property people say no?
MR. YAMAMOTO:

Then there is a possibility that he can be

8

denied service.

9

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

10

What happens if one of those

MR. YAMAMOTO:

okay.

It would be possible to install everything

11

within the right-of-way.

12

on the neighboring properties, we have to -- we

13

would have to probably install more poles and, you

14

know, just to make sure we get around the bends, you

15

know, without crossing over private property.

16

-- it's more costly on his end and of course the

17

more poles would be more visually, I guess,

18

unsightly.

19

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Okay.

However, to not encroach

So it

So on your proposal for the

20

three new poles, how many if not all are on private

21

property and not on county right-of-way?

22
23
24
25

MR. YAMAMOTO:

The two poles in question are -- the first

pole is -- let me get my -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

That would be the easement 7 feet

wide by 55 feet long?
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MR. YAMAMOTO:

Right.

Well, because the -- the new pole

2

that we'll be installing in that easement that you

3

are mentioning, some of the lines will also cross

4

over into the easement that we have suggested as the

5

7 foot wide by 20 feet long that

6

above the one that you just

7

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

8

MR. YAMAMOTO;

9

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

10
11

MR. YAMAMOTO:

that's right

Right.

-- had mentioned.
Right.

And then the other easement would be the

one at the end of the third pole, E3-4A.

12

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

13

MR. YAMAMOTO:

Right.

The 7 foot wide by 100 feet long.

14

would need those -- those three easements to

15

complete this design.

16

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Okay.

So we

And the one that I mentioned

17

and the one that you just mentioned are on private

18

property or that is county right-of-way?

19

MR. YAMAMOTO:

No, those are on private property.

20

only one that's going to be in the County

21

right-of-way is Pole E2 --

22

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

23

MR. YAMAMOTO:

24

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

25

The

The middle.

-- E2-4A, yes, sir.
Okay.

Is there a time for you to

receive a response whether or not those private
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property easements can be granted or not?

2

MR. YAMAMOTO:

Well--

3

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

I would hate to leave this

4

open-ended whereby one year later still nothing

5

happens or

6

MR. YAMAMOTO:

Well, the customer had been currently

7

waiting for more than three years.

He's -- yeah, he

8

-- there's been many obstacles, but easements being

9

one of them.

On Maui Electric side, you know, we

10

would leave the project open until the customer

11

actively just said, you know what, I can't get this

12

done and cancel the project.

13
14
15

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Okay.

And this is basically to

give power service to the last parcel TMK 2-6-06:59?
MR. YAMAMOTO:

No, actually it's the one next to it,

16

2-6-06:60.

17

of the TMK 2-6-06:59 is going to be underground

18

service from there going into the property of

19

2-6-06:60.

20

The easement that wraps around the bend

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Okay, okay.

So that would be in

21

the rear of Lot 59 that is situated along Ulumalu

22

[sic] Road?

23

MR. YAMAMOTO:

Ulumau Place, yes, uh-huh.

24

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

25

MR. YAMAMOTO:

Ulumau Place, yes.

Correct.
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2

3

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Okay, okay.

Thank you very much

for your -- your responses.
CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you, Member Hokama.
Committee Members, any other questions for

4

5

our resource personnel here today?

Okay.

Members,

6

at this point, your Chair is -- well, if there's no

7

other final comments, the Chair's going to make his

8

recommendation at this point.

9

that the applicant has not received any response

In light of the fact

10

from the neighbors as it relates to the easement,

11

the Chair is -- would prefer not to act on this

12

today until we get a response.
If I could ask Mr. Yamamoto one question.

13
14

now if one person denies access, so that means the

15

project basically is scrap then.

16

would not obviously proceed with that.

17

MR. YAMAMOTO:

So

Maui Electric

Well, there are -- I guess we haven't

18

explored any other possibilities yet to come from

19

another route mostly because it would be too -- too

20

expensive for the customer.

21

a possibility that if one of the private landowners

22

do not -- doesn't grant easement, that he could be

23

denied that service, correct.

24

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you.

25

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

But, yes, it's -- it's

Member Pontanilla?

So if you go along Ulumau Road
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with a redesign on a county road right-of-way, you

2

probably would require more easements?

3

MR. YAMAMOTO:

There might be a way to do it without, but

4

it'd be very -- like I said, you'd have to put more

5

poles to shorten the distances.

6

way how we did to make it least amount of materials

7

for the

8

it's feasible, but the right-of-ways is already only

9

roughly 2 1/5 feet wide, I believe, on that road.

the customer.

10

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

11

MR. YAMAMOTO:

12

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
line of

14

MR. YAMAMOTO:

15

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

16

MR. YAMAMOTO:

17

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

19
20

Yeah, I was talking more in

-- on your redesign --

Uh-huh.
-- more anchoring into private

properties to secure the pole.
MR. YAMAMOTO:

So is the question can we do it without the

anchors, is that what -COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

22

MR. YAMAMOTO:

23

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

25

On that road.

Oh.

21

24

But, yeah, I mean, it's --

And that doesn't leave us much room so.

13

18

We designed it the

No, no, no, no.

Oh.
What I mean, if you were to

redesign
MR. YAMAMOTO:

Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

going along the county road

right-of-way --

3

MR. YAMAMOTO:

Uh-huh.

4

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

-- of course you're still going

5

to require easements because of the -- the different

6

angles that you have coming in.

7

MR. YAMAMOTO:

8

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

9

10

Right.
That would go into private

property.
MR. YAMAMOTO:

Well, the reason why we have anchors is

11

only because of the distance in the spans.

12

shorten the spans and not put anchors.

13

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

14

MR. YAMAMOTO:

We could

Put those, yeah.

It would, yeah, it would just cause more

15

poles to be installed in the right-of-way.

16

-- there might be a way we could do it without

17

being in private property, you know, again, but that

18

would

19

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

20

MR. YAMAMOTO:

21

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

22

CHAIR MOLINA:

23

So that

Okay.

-- you know, necessitate more poles.

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you, Member Pontanilla.

Any other comments?

In addition, the Chair

24

would like to solicit a response from the community

25

association as well as it relates to this matter.
RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

PWT 6/03/04

116

1

As we all know, telephone poles in whatever

2

community its proposed to go up in generally elicit

3

some responses from various members.

4

would like to insure that we get the responses from

5

the community, as well as the neighbors impacted

6

with this proposal here.
Question, Member Pontanilla?

7

8
9

So the Chair

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Yeah, just a question on are we

going to require all of the utilities to approach

10

all of the community association whenever pole

11

replacements need to be done or even providing

12

service to customers that are already being fed

13

overhead?

14

CHAIR MOLINA:

I don't know if that has officially been --

15

that's been an official request from the Department

16

or the County.

17

that.

18

circumstances, it may be a good idea for, I guess,

19

not only Maui Electric but all the utility companies

20

to at least establish the lines of communication

21

with the members of the community because over the

22

years community members have been more vocal about

23

these and other types of related concerns.

24
25

Maybe Mr. Agaran could comment on

I -- I think in -- in light of recent

Maybe, Mr. Agaran, would you like to comment
on that?
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MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

That hasn't been the process and

2

and we have not been sending these requests to

3

community associations.

4

impression that one of the reasons that the Council

5

now requires review over certain types of

6

installations is to give notice and afford

7

interested people a chance to come and make comments

8

on these installations.

9

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

In part I -- I was on the

I pose that question because of

10

the number -- you know, being a former telephone

11

company employee, when -- when providing services to

12

customers, you know, some of -- well, for the phone

13

company I know at a certain point some contact are

14

made in regards to the neighboring area in regards

15

to, you know, what the company is going to be doing.

16

But basically those -- those requirements is when

17

you look at more underground service in the -- in

18

the area that's going to be providing utility

19

service.

20

I question that because of the other -- the

21

other thing that I was thinking of is the public

22

utilities tariff in regards to providing overhead

23

service, you know, if that's going to playa part in

24

-- in determining, you know, how do we handle the

25

utilities.

Just a comment.
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CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you, Member Pontanilla.
Any other questions or comments to the

2
3

Chair's recommendations?

4

Kane, followed by Member Johnson.

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

6

the new pole?

7

and then we're going to come in with three new

8

poles.

9

road?

10
11

MR. YAMAMOTO:

Mr. Yamamoto, which is

Because we're

we're replacing two

So where is the new pole, the end of the

The new poles are the -- the solid --

solidly filled-in circles.

~2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

13

MR. YAMAMOTO:

14

Thank you.

We'll start with Member

The black, yeah?

The black ones.

And the ones that are

going to be removed are the ones with the --

15

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

16

MR. YAMAMOTO:

"X's".

-- "X's", yes, sir.

Oh, actually, so, I'm

17

sorry, yeah, we're removing two, but then the one

18

next to the new pole El-4A is a 30 -- I think it's a

19

35-footer right no adhere.

20

one out to a 40-footer.

21
22

23
24
25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
40-footer.

MR. YAMAMOTO:

Okay.

So we're changing that

So the El-4A, that's the

Okay, okay, okay.

Right, that's the first 40 -- 40-footer,

correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

And then as far as notification, you
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1

folks have done nothing to notify.

2

cast on the -- the person requesting the service,

3

Mr. Gray?

4

MR. YAMAMOTO:

It's all been

That's correct, especially -- well, in this

5

case because of the easements that are required.

6

Other than that I'm not too sure how we would

7

contact them.

8

never, but I mean, it hasn't been like the normal

9

practice.

10

You know, it's never -- I mean, not

But I guess --

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

So -- so El-4A, the existing pole,

11

that's going to be replaced, and then El-4A is going

12

to be the new one.

13

MR. YAMAMOTO:

14

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

15
16

Correct, but we're just changing it.
That -- that's an existing easement

or they're requesting more of an easement there?
MR. YAMAMOTO:

I believe that since this was installed as

17

noted in 1959, I'm not too sure if we do have an

18

existing easement currently.

19

well, I can't really speak for --

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

21

MR. YAMAMOTO:

And I think that --

Yeah.

those kind of things, but we need to

22

since we're replacing it and putting new ones in

23

we'd have to secure them now.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

And, Mr. Chair, your -- your -- your
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1

Mr. Gray to notify any particular neighbor are the

2

ones that have the pole impacting them with the

3

easement area?

4

CHAIR MOLINA:

Well, my -- my

I guess through Maui
you know, I guess, he

5

Electric, if they could

6

would probably, I would assume, first go through you

7

to -- is it the applicant's responsibility to notify

8

you that the neighbors have given approval or

9

disapproval to this project?

10

MR. YAMAMOTO:

I believe to my understanding that since

11

that's not really part of the -- our process as of

12

-- overall, I -- I'm not too sure how we would

13

like if a letter from each neighbor was saying that

14

they approve of it, you know, would -- would it be

15

suffice -- sufficient enough on our part, I -- I

16

wouldn't have any answer.

17

supervisors on that.

18

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I'd have to check with my

Thank you.
So Mr. Chair, your staff is going to

20

be working with Maui Electric to figure out what's

21

going to provide some sort of written authorization,

22

from where?

23

because those are the two private properties that

24

are going to have poles directly impacting their

25

properties.

It looks like two impacted properties
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1

CHAIR MOLINA:

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

3

4

Yeah, yeah.
So that's going to be your direction

to your staff?
CHAIR MOLINA:

Yeah, yeah, to the staff and as well as

5

working with the Department.

Because for the Chair,

6

to me, to act on this today, you know, upon, you

7

know, this revelation that was just given to the

8

Committee today about the applicant awaiting to hear

9

a response from the neighbors, I'm not comfortable

10

with, you know, acting on it, and I would prefer to

11

see what the outcome is of that before having any

12

decision made.

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

14

CHAIR MOLINA:

15

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

16

CHAIR MOLINA:

17

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yeah.
Thank you.

Thank you.

Member Johnson?

My question would maybe be to Gil

18

and this is on because this is an older subdivision

19

is that's why this is happening?

20

you would have all your utility easements and

21

everything would all be in and you wouldn't have

22

this problem because no developer is going to go in

23

and then make every subsequent homeowner go through

24

this process.

25

old subdivision?

Because ordinarily

So is this just because it's such an
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MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

I think probably that's -- in part

2

that's true.

3

utility and government agencies were not as thorough

4

in coming -- in documenting the locations of utility

5

lines and poles in the past, and so there may not be

6

documents indicating easements in some of the older

7

areas, older installations.

But it is true that probably the

8

Why this came before you though is that the

9

council has chosen to review installation of poles

10

that are higher than what's being replaced, and

11

that's what's happening here.

12

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

Thank you.

Mr. Chair, just

13

maybe from a general perspective, maybe if you were

14

to send out letters to Haiku-Kula Community

15

Association, Kihei, you know, just the community

16

associations in general and ask them what is their

17

preference, do they want to be notified every time,

18

do they want to be notified when it's above a

19

certain height, you know, what is their preference.

20

Because if the community association says,

21

well, we don't really care if it's a replacement of

22

a pole, we don't need to see it, if it's a wooden

23

pole going in with the same size, wooden pole

24

because it's decayed, we don't care, or if it's some

25

giant -- you know, because the gray ones, the big
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1

metal poles have been the ones that have created a

2

controversy.

3

feedback from them and see what their thinking is.

Maybe to just get some general

Because I think as you said earlier, it's

4

5

sort of -- it creates controversy.

6

to communicate upfront and then that way no one can

7

say, well, I was never asked for comment.

8
9

10
11

12

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

But it's better

Thank you, Member Johnson.

That

will be taken into consideration.
Any other comments or questions before the
Chair defers the matter?
The Chair would like to just make one

13

comment.

In the future, I guess, for Maui Electric

14

and -- and the Department itself, if we could get

15

responses to these questions in a much more timely

16

fashion.

17

are June 3rd and we're finally getting a response to

18

this letter.

My letter was dated May 13th and here we

19

And there were some, you know, interesting

20

responses that I think generated some concern, at

21

least on the Chair's part.

22

in the future that we get responses sooner.

23

otherwise, we would not have had this matter

24

discussed today until all the responses to the

25

questions were addressed.

It would be appreciated

And so those are my
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comments.
Any objections to deferral?

2

3

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

4

CHAIR MOLINA:

5

ACTION:

No objections.

Okay.

Thank you very much, Members.
~urther

Recommending DEFERRAL pending
discussion.

6

7
8

CHAIR MOLINA:

All righty, Members, we're getting there.

And thank you very much, Mr. Yamamoto and --

9

MR. YAMAMOTO:

Thank you.

10

CHAIR MOLINA:

-- Ms. Tihada.

11

ITBK NO. 15:

PROPOSED RESOLUTION ACCEPTING DEDICATION OF
ROAD WIDENING LOT FOR THE KENOLIO
SUBDIVISION (KIHEI) (C.C. 04-14)

CHAIR MOLINA:

We are on Item No. 15 which has to do with

12
13
14

accepting dedication of the road widening lot for

15

the Kenolio Mauka Subdivision, and the Chair would

16

like to ask the Director to give an overview of this

17

item.

18

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

This is

19

associated with a subdivision Kenolio Mauka that was

20

approved on December 23rd, 2002.

21

were constructed before final approval.

22

roadway lot of approximately 188 feet by 10.

23

it's a 10-foot roadway widening lot.

24

has looked at it and we recommend accepting

25

dedication.

The improvements
This is a
So

The Department
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CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you very much, Mr. Director.

2

Questions for the Director?

3

the Chair's recommendation is to adopt the proposed

4

resolution and the filing of the communication.

5

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

6

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

7

CHAIR MOLINA:

8

9
10

Seeing no questions,

So moved.

Okay.

No objections.

It's been moved by Member Tavares.

Is there a second?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
CHAIR MOLINA:

Second.

Seconded by Member Pontanilla.

11

Seeing --

12

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

13

CHAIR MOLINA:

14

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

15

CHAIR MOLINA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Discussion.

1--

Okay.
I just had one question.

Member Johnson.
And that was in regard, Gil, you

17

said that the improvements had been done prior to

18

this approval.

19

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Is that the ordinary process?
The process for subdivision approval

20

is you can either bond for final approval or you can

21

construct the improvements.

22

chose to construct the improvements.

23

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

In this case, they

And this isn't the

24

subdivision where there's been all the controversy

25

with regard to the flooding and -RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
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MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

That's a new one that I don't -- I

don't believe has been constructed yet.

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

4

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

5

thinking of.

6

Well

If the one -- if that's the one I'm

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

No, there's -- this -- there's one

7

that's already constructed.

8

think it's in the Kenolio area where all of the

9

wetland area was actually removed and --

10

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

11

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

12

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

14

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

15

16
17

It's condominiums and I

Yeah.
if there's a big flood.

I'm not sure.
Okay.

It's possible this is one of the

Betsill Brothers developments.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

But you're not sure if it's

this specific one?

18

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Right, I'm not sure.

19

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

20

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you, Member Johnson.

Any other

21

questions or comments for the Director?

22

Hearing none, all those in favor signify by saying

23

"aye."

24

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.

25

CHAIR MOLINA:

All those opposed?

Okay.

Okay.

Let the record
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show it's unanimous.

1
2

VOTE:

AYES:

3

4
5

NOES:
ABSTAIN:
EXC. :
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

6

7

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

8

CHAIR MOLINA:

9

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

councilmembers Hokama, Kane,
Pontanilla, Vice-Chair Tavares and
Chair Molina.
None.
None.
None.
Recommending ADOPTION of proposed
resolution and FILING of communication.

Chair?

Member Tavares?
Were you -- were you looking at a

10

process by which we would not have these in

11

committee?

12

CHAIR MOLINA:

Yes.

As a matter of fact, I'm glad you

13

brought that up, I just finished that discussion

14

with my analyst.
Mr. Saldana, would you care to give us the

15

16

status or update on where we're at in regards to

17

dealing with dedications

18

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

19

CHAIR MOLINA:

20

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

21

CHAIR MOLINA:

Roadways.

-- on the Council, roadway dedications?
Yeah.

Yeah, on, I guess, I would assume, dealing

22

with it on the Council floor rather than having it

23

sent to Committee, right?

24

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

25

CHAIR MOLINA:

Yeah.

Yeah.
Mr. Saldana?
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MR. SALDANA:

Yeah, and I -- I realize this isn't on the

2

agenda, this particular issue, but I'll try to be as

3

-- as brief as possible on this.

4

Sometime ago the Council had thought that

5

some of these more traditional slam-dunk kind of

6

dedications should be considered on the Council

7

floor as opposed to being sent to -- to Committee.

8

As a result, your Committee Staff met with

9

representatives from DSA to come up with a process

10
11

to -- to handle these.
So as a result on -- let's see, I've got the

12

wrong -- excuse me, one second.

13

April 5th the Committee Chair had sent a request to

14

the Director of Public Works and Environmental

15

Management asking that a checklist that was devised

16

by DSA and the staff be completed prior to

17

submitting such request to the Council, which is

18

basically an outline of

19

that you would need.

20

As a result, on

of all the information

Then based on that once the item is received

21

by Council, the Chair would then forward a -- a memo

22

to the -- to the Council Members and to the -- to

23

the Committee Members and -- and the entire Council

24

indicating that a dedication or road widening lot

25

dedication is -- is going to be considered.
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1

attach the checklist, the information will be

2

available at the clerk's office, and that if there

3

was no objection, then the Chair would move to waive

4

referral and have the item considered on the floor.
We had reviewed this process also with the

5
6

Director of Council services and the Council Chair,

7

and they all approved the process.

8

unfortunately, these that you're considering now had

9

-- had been submitted prior to this letter being

10

11

So it just --

sent to the Director of Public Works.
VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

So these weren't grandfathered, in

12

other words.

13

we're going to go through their process?

14

great.

15

CHAIR MOLINA:

So are we in that process now, I mean,
That'll be

Thanks for the work on that.
Okay.

Thank you, Member Tavares, for your

16

considerations and concern for protecting our trees

17

and reducing the amount of trees being desecrated

18

for paper products and for preserving our --

19

providing additional Committee time as well.

20

ITEK NO. 24:

PROPOSED RESOLUTIONS ACCEPTING DEDICATION
OF ROADWAY LOTS AND ACCESS AND UTILITY LOT
FOR THE KE ALI'I KAI SUBDIVISION (KIHEI)
(C.C. 03-299)

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

21

22
23

Let's see, we're on our last item of

24

the day which is Item 24, Members, which is

25

accepting the dedication of roadway lots and access
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1

and utility lots for the Ke Ali'i Kai Subdivision in

2

Kihei.
At this time, Mr. Coloma-Agaran, if you'd

3

4

5

like to give us an overview of this matter.
MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

This -- this item includes a proposal

6

for dedication of seven roadway lots that were

7

required for dedication in association with the

8

Ke Ali'i Kai Subdivision.

9

CHAIR MOLINA:

10

Thank you, Mr. Director.
Committee Members, any questions for the

11

Director?

Seeing none, Chair recommends the

12

adoption of the revised proposed resolution and the

13

filing of the communication.

14

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

15

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

16

CHAIR MOLINA:

17

Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

19

CHAIR MOLINA:

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

22
23

Second.

Moved by Member Tavares.

18

21

So moved.

Seconded by

Discussion?

Mr. Chair?

Member Kane?
Are we voting on just one or two

revised resolutions?
CHAIR MOLINA:

We are voting on, I should have stated,

revised proposed resolutions, yeah.

24

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

25

CHAIR MOLINA:

So there's two, yeah?

Two, that's correct.

Thank you for --
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1

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

2

CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you.

-- making that clarification.

3

comments?

Okay.

4

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Any other

Member Hokama?
Chairman, I am reviewing the map

5

and I just wanted to be clear because the map,

6

there's a lot of easements.

7

on those specific easements that's listed on the

8

agenda, 104, 105, 106 through 10, as well as Lot

9

102?

10
11
12

CHAIR MOLINA:

I believe so.

But we -- we only are

Mr. Director, you want to

give comment to Member Hokama's question?
MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Yes.

What we have before you is

13

Access and utility Lot No. 102 and Roadway Lots 104,

14

105, 106, 107, 108, 109, and 110.

15
16

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

And I just bring that up, Chairman,

bus if you look at the map --

17

CHAIR MOLINA:

Which map?

18

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

The biggest one.

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

The giant.

20

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

The giant one.

21

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

If you look at -- on the notes area

22

of easements, Mr. Director, Lot 102 and 108 is -- is

23

also part of as under -- under Easement A, it says

24

for drainage purposes, it says affecting Lots 96,

25

102, and 108.

And I just was wondering if 96 was
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1

supposed to be included, but for whatever reasons

2

it's not.

3

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

That -- that's not before you.

4

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

5

CHAIR MOLINA:

6

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

7

please --

Okay.

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you, Member Hokama.

8

CHAIR MOLINA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

One -- one other question,

Proceed.
Chair.

Again, on the notes and

10

I'll make it enough so that we stay within our

11

parameters, it shows the listing of the lots that

12

are before us, but it also list a lot of other

13

easements, Mr. Director.

14

private easements that's agreed upon by the owners

15

within the subdivision and -- and nothing to do with

16

the county of Maui, would that be a correct

17

assessment?

18

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Those easements is just

Not necessarily.

Let me -- let me

19

take a quick look because what -- what you have

20

before you actually as part of the dedication

21

process is the final plat for the subdivision.

22

it includes everything that was required for

23

approval.

24

You may also have easements that the Department of

25

water Supply required and the like.

So

So you may have easements for utilities.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
on the record.
CHAIR MOLINA:

Members, the Chair will call for a brief

4

brief recess.

5

Chair.

Recess subject to the call of the

(Gavel.)

11:57 a.m.

6

RECESS:

7

RECONVENE:

8

CHAIR MOLINA:

9

I'm sorry, Chair, I don't need it

12:03 p.m.

(Gavel.)

Public Works and Traffic

Committee meeting for June 3rd is now back in

10

session.

11

the floor a motion to adopt the proposed resolutions

12

as revised and the filing of the communication, and

13

we last left off with Member Hokama.

14

Members, at this time we currently have on

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Member Hokama?

Chairman, thank you for that

15

recess.

16

the Director of the Department has provided

17

sufficient responses that I am happy to support the

18

motion.

19

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you very much, Member Hokama.

Any other questions or comments as it

20
21

And during the recess my discussions with

pertains to the motion that's on the floor?

22

VICE-CHAIR TAVARES:

23

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

24

CHAIR MOLINA:

25

No.
No.

Seeing none, all those in favor signify by

saying "aye."
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1

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.

2

CHAIR MOLINA:

AYES:

VOTE:

5
6
7

NOES:
ABSTAIN:
EXC. :
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

8

9

Okay.

Thank you.

The

Chair will mark it unanimous.

3

4

All those opposed.

CHAIR MOLINA:

Counci1members Hokama, Kane,
pontanilla, Vice-Chair Tavares and
Chair Kolina.
None.
None.
None.
Recommendinq ADOPTION of proposed
resolution and FILING of communication.

Okay.

Members, this concludes our agenda

10

items for today.

11

the Chair, as always, thanks all of you for your

12

participation and cooperation and your dedication to

13

public service.

14

adjourned.

15

ADJOURN:

Any announcements?

Seeing none,

This meeting for June 3rd is

(Gavel.)

12:04 p.m.

16
17
18
19
20

21

22
23

24
25
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C E R T I F I CAT E

1

2

STATE OF HAWAII

)

3
4

CITY AND COUNTY OF MAUl

SSe

)

5

6

I, Cristina V. Llewellyn, Certified Shorthand

7

Reporter for the state of Hawaii, hereby certify that the

8

proceedings were taken down by me in machine shorthand and

9

was thereafter reduced to typewritten form under my

10

supervision; that the foregoing represents to the best of

11

my ability, a true and correct transcript of the

12

proceedings had in the foregoing matter.

13

I further certify that I am not attorney for any of

14

the parties hereto, nor in any way concerned with the

15

cause.

16
17

DATED this 28th day of June, 2004, in Honolulu,
Hawaii.

18
19
20
21
22

Cristina V. Ll
llyn, CSR NO. 343
Notary Public, tate of Hawaii
My Commission Expires: 04/19/05
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